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Financial Review

Financial Summary
DENSO CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years ended March 31, 2020 to 2024

Berod endad March March March March

2020 2021 2022 2023
Revenue (Millions of yen) 5,153,476 | 4,936,725 | 5,515,512 | 6,401,320 | 7,144,733
Operating profit (Millions of yen) 61,078 155,107 341,179 426,099 380,599
Profit for the year (Millions of yen) 84,622 148,095 288,754 347,861 355,573
Profit for the year: attributable to owners of the parent 68 099 125.055 263 901 314 633 312.791
company (Millions of yen) ! i ’ ! :
Comprehensive (loss) income (Millions of yen) (84,407) 635,886 655,525 348,749 | 1,557,640
Equity: atiributable to/owners of 3,397,136 | 3,891,012 | 4,299,357 | 4,376,928 | 5,534,086
the parent company (Millions of yen)
Total assets (Millions of yen) 5,651,801 | 6,767,684 | 7,432,271 | 7,408,662 | 9,093,370
Equity per share: attributable to owners of the parent
company (Yen) 1,096.03 | 1,255.38 | 1,408.10 | 1,461.27 | 1,901.56
Basic profit per share (Yen) 21.97 40.35 85.69 104.00 104.97
Diluted profit per share (Yen) = = = — =
Equity ratio attributable to owners of the parent (%) 60.11 57.49 57.85 59.08 60.87
Return on equity attributable to owners of the parent 195 343 6.44 795 6.31
company (%) ) ) ) ) )
Price-to-earnings ratio (Times) 39.72 45.52 22.93 17.89 27.47
Dividends on equity attributable to owners of the
parent company (%) 3.10 298 3.10 3.22 3.27
Net cash provided by oparating activities 595320 | 437,235 | 395637 | 602,720 | 961,826
(Millions of yen) ! ’ ’ ! !
Net cash used in investing activities (Millions of yen) (447,390) | (395,903) | (301,579) | (363,676) | (459,487)
Ne_t pash (used in) provided by financing activities (240,048) 238,657 | (159,536) | (400,099) | (496,659)
(Millions of yen) ? : ? ! 2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
(Millions of yen) 597,816 897,395 867,808 733,850 789,390
Number of employees 170,932 168,391 167,950 164,572 162,029

(Note 1) DENSO CORPORATION and its subsidiaries in Japan and overseas

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") for the consolidated financial statements of the annual report.

(collectively referred to as the "Group") have adopted

(MNote 2) On October 1, 2023, the Company effected a 4-for-1 split of common stock. Equity per share: attributable to owners of the
parent company and basic profit per share are calculated on the assumption that the stock split was implemented at the

beginning of the year ended March 31, 2020.




Revenue by Segment
DENSO CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years ended March 31, 2020 to 2024

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
2019/4-2020/3|2020/4-2021/3|2021/4-2022/3|2022/4-2023/3 LAY S lir LIk}
Japan Customers 2,313,046 | 2,280,650 | 2,375,673 | 2,509,604 | 2,885,718
Intersegment 950,441 896,303 | 1,139,424 1,196,230 1,280,637
Total 3,263,487 | 3,176,953 | 3,515,097 | 3,705,834 | 4,166,355
North America Customers 1,145,230 999,901 1,143,929 1,486,718 1,745,443
Intersegment 31,035 26,285 16,276 17,370 21,599
Total 1,176,265 | 1,026,186 | 1,160,205 1,504,088 1,767,042
Europe Customers 548,301 482,282 506,203 624,329 709,679
Intersegment 34,978 37,420 55,237 61,223 71,670
Total 583,279 519,702 561,440 685,552 781,349
Asia Customers 1,086,862 | 1,134,088 | 1,414,347 1,680,872 1,689,807
Intersegment 191,593 169,734 223,538 250,783 295,265
Total 1,278455 | 1,303,822 | 1,637,885 1,931,655 1,985,072
Total Customers 5,093,439 | 4,896,921 5,440,152 | 6,301,523 | 7,030,647
Intersegment 1,208,047 | 1,129,742 1,434,475 1,525,606 1,669,171
Total 6,301,486 | 6,026,663 | 6,874,627 | 7,827,129 | 8,699,818
Others Customers 60,037 39,804 75,360 99,797 114,086
Intersegment 702 602 1,244 1,436 1,072
Total 60,739 40,406 76,604 101,233 115,158
Consolidated 5153476 | 4936,725| 5515512 | 6,401,320 | 7,144,733

(Note) The Group has reported "Japan,” "Morth America,” "Europe,” and "Asia" as the Group's reportable segments. The Group has
been manufacturing and selling mainly automotive products in each reportable segment. "Others" is an operating segment that
contains businesses not included in the reportable segments, such as activities of subsidiaries in South America.



Financial Highlights

For the years ended March 31, 2020 to 2024
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

1. Business environment

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, the global economy had been on a growth trend as the disruption in
economic activities caused by COVID-19 subsided despite the stagnation in Chinese economy and the slowdown in
emerging countries. In addition, global inflation had continued, including rising wage pressures due to the recovery in
demand for services following economic reopening from COVID-19. Uncertainties regarding the future became more
apparent, such as the prolongation of the conflict in Ukraine and the escalation of tensions in the Middle East. In
financial markets, the yen had weakened due to interest rate hikes by Western and Japanese monetary easing
stance.

2. Summary of business

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, in addition to the fact that the semiconductor shortages eased and vehicle
production recovered, the progress of yen depreciation and strong sales expansion, especially in the focus area of
electrification and safety and peace of mind products, caused revenue to increase year over year. Operating profit
decreased year over year due to incurred quality costs, in spite of production volume increase, exchange gain and
efforts of cost reduction. In accordance with the Tokyo Stock Exchange’s call for companies to take actions to realize
management that is conscious of the cost of capital and share prices, DENSO CORPORATION (hereinafter referred
to as the "Company") has reduced cross-shareholdings and is working to optimize inventories with the aim of
increasing asset efficiency. In these efforts to reduce cross-shareholdings, the Company sold all eight listed stock
issues and a part of three listed stock issues, thereby reducing its shareholdings in 11 issues (a sale price of ¥125.8
billion), the largest reduction ever. In addition, the Company has implemented a secondary offering of shares held by
Toyota Group. In the inventory optimization efforts, the Company aimed to completely eliminate the temporary
inventories, which had risen globally due to the sudden drop in automobile production and shipping delays on the
West Coast of the U.S. To this end, the Company worked as one to implement activities such as the visualization of
inventories on a monthly basis and adjustment of order volume through close coordination with customers. As a
result, the Company succeeded in reducing inventory levels from the level equivalent to 2.4 months of monthly sales
in June 2022 to 1.9 months of monthly sales. The funds generated through these activities were invested in Coherent,
JASM, and the Certhon Group. The Company will continue to strive to improve its capital efficiency, strategically
invest in growth areas, and enhance corporate value.

<Challenge - Initiatives for Creating Future Value>

In pursuit of a sustainable mobility society, the Company has been promoting "environmental management” to reduce
environmental impacts and create economic value through environmental protection activities. By further advancing
"environmental management,” the Company aims to realize carbon neutrality in business activities by 2035.

The environment surrounding the Company has changed drastically, and we are required to deal with these changes
in a way that meets the demands of society. Efforts to achieve carbon neutrality are accelerating, and the
diversification of values calls for the preparation of multi-pathway to issues instead of a single solution. The society is
also moving towards a circular society of optimal production and optimal consumption. To support these tremendous
changes, there is a rising demand for integrated systems that do not rely on hardware alone but instead combine
hardware and software. Meeting the demands of society requires action not just at the level of the automobile industry
but at the level of society as a whole, including automobiles.



Changes in the business environment and the demands of society

Past Future Social demand

Acceleration of

“Low carbon” “Decarbonization” .
carbon neutrality

Globalization Diversification Multi-pathway
Mass production/ Optimal production/ Circular economy
consumption consumption
Hardware Hardware x Software Integrated systems

Guided by the philosophy of "green," "peace of mind," and "inspiring," the Company has been committed to the
realization of "lasting vitality for the environment" and "safe, comfortable, and flexible mobility for all people" with the
aim of reducing the Company's environmental burden and realizing a society without traffic accidents. The Company
will leverage the strengths gained with automobiles and broaden the perspective of the solutions to encompass
society as a whole, not just vehicles, thereby contributing to solving issues faced by society.

Since its founding, the Company has committed to giving shape to new concepts by using technologies and
contributing to customers. This means to "come up with concepts, embody them as products and systems, and refine
them for commercialization." Based on the philosophy of "green" and "peace of mind," the Company will leverage the
strengths gained with automobiles to contribute to the maximization of value for a mobility society as a whole,
including automobiles, and evolve from "a Tier 1 supplier that supports the auto industry" to "a Tier 1 supplier that
supports a mobility society."
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In a mobility society where automobiles are evolving and connecting beyond themselves and where the scope of
application of automobile technologies is expanding, the Company aims to be one that provides a broad range of
customers with value backed by the exceptional technologies and reliable quality from the perspectives of end-users
of the products and services.



3. Results of operations

(1) Revenue and profit
Revenue of the Group increased by ¥743.4 billion or 11.6% year on year to ¥7,144.7 billion for the year ended

March 31, 2024, and operating profit decreased by ¥45.5 billion or 10.7% to ¥380.6 billion. Consequently, profit
before income taxes decreased by ¥20.6 billion or 4.5% to ¥436.2 billion, and profit attributable to owners of the
parent company decreased by ¥1.8 billion or 0.6% to ¥312.8 billion.

(2) Policy on allocation of earnings
Dividends
As well as investing in business for growth, the Company places importance on the interest of shareholders and
positions sustainable enhancement of corporate value and enrichment of shareholder returns as important
management policies. The Company’s basic policy is to seek to reduce capital cost and raise corporate value by
issuing proactive shareholder returns and realizing an optimal capital structure while maintaining a balance
between safety and efficiency.

Regarding dividends, the Company has adopted DOE (dividend on equity: total dividend amount divided by
equity attributable to owners of the parent company) as a shareholder return indicator, and intends to pay stable
dividends over the long term with a policy of continuously increasing DOE from 3.0%, while comprehensively
taking capital efficiency, dividend amount, and consolidated performance into consideration. The Company also
injects cash into capital investment, R&D investment and M&A, which are necessary for growing its business and
realizing the philosophy, and flexibly acquires treasury stock while paying attention to the targeted capital
structure and theoretical share price, in pursuit of distributing its profits to the shareholders.

The Company stipulates in its Articles of Incorporation that it may distribute dividends from surplus upon
resolution of the Board of Directors in accordance with Article 459, Paragraph 1, of the Companies Act without
adopting a resolution at a general meeting of shareholders.

Accordingly, the Company, at its Board of Directors meeting held on April 26, 2024, resolved that the fiscal year-
end dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, be ¥30 per share of the Company’'s common stock (for a
total of ¥87.3 billion) and the date of commencement of dividend payment thereof be May 23, 2024. The annual
dividend for the current fiscal year, including the interim dividend, is ¥55 per share.

On October 1, 2023, the Company effected a 4-for-1 split of common stock. Dividend per share is calculated on
the assumption that the stock split was implemented at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2024.

Acquisition of treasury stock
The Company stipulates in its Articles of Incorporation that it may acquire treasury stock upon resolution of the
Board of Directors in accordance with Article 165, Paragraph 2 of the Companies Act.

In the future, while considering cash flows, the Company will maintain this share repurchasing policy as an
important tool in improving ROE and increasing shareholder value.

Source of funds and liquidity risk management
The Group's fundamental financial policy is designed to ensure efficient funding and management of funds for the
operational activities of the entire Group, secure an optimum level of funds and liquidity, and maintain a sound
financial position.



Capital expenditures/depreciation
The Group applies a number of benchmarks to ensure appropriate decisions are made with regard to capital
expenditures. These benchmarks include projected cash flows, return on assets (ROA), the number of years to
recover investments, and forecasts of profitability. As part of the drive to reduce medium-term fixed costs, the
Group is minimizing the scale of its production lines, standardizing components, and using global procurement to
reduce facilities costs.
Capital expenditures and depreciation during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 were ¥394.6 billion and
¥374.3 billion, respectively.

Capital expenditures/depreciation by segment

In regard to capital expenditures by geographic segment, the Group focused its investment on most of the
regions to increase production, and mainly invests in new products and rationalization measures. As a result,
capital expenditures spent in Japan were ¥228.7 billion.

In regions outside of Japan, capital expenditures in North America, Europe, Asia, and other areas were ¥54.1
billion, ¥30.5 billion, ¥74.9 billion, and ¥6.4 billion, respectively.

R&D activities

In the DENSO Group Long-term Policy 2030, the Group declares that it will maximize the provision of green value
and peace of mind value, endeavor to create new value, and contribute to ensuring a society filled with smiling
faces.

The Group's R&D expenses, including the amount recognized as assets for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024, totaled ¥550.9 billion.

R&D expenses by segment
By geographic segment, R&D expenses in Japan were ¥485.4 billion.

In regions outside Japan, R&D expenses in North America, Europe, Asia, and other areas were ¥32.0 billion,
¥14.6 billion, ¥17.8 billion, and ¥1.0 billion, respectively.

Approximately 88% of total R&D expenses arose from Japan. The Group continues to aim for the achievement of
a society with global-advanced-mobility through the reinforcement of research function in other areas.



4. Sustainability philosophy and initiatives

(1) Overview

Since its founding, the Company has promoted sustainability management to contribute to the resolutions of social
issues through our businesses for society and customers. The Company's approach to sustainability management,
echoing the DENSO Creed, represents the core of the Company's management that it has passed down and
provides the Company with a driving force for growth. To steadily implement sustainability management, the
Company has formulated the Sustainability Policy, incorporated social issues into the Company's Long-term Policy
and the Company's material issues (materiality), and worked to resolve those issues through the Company's
business activities. The Company's basic management structure for promoting its sustainability management is as

follows.

Promotion Structure and Division for DENSO's Sustainability Management
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1) Governance

The executive vice president and representative member of the Board supervise the Corporate Strategy
Division which is responsible for promoting companywide sustainability management. This division is involved in
such efforts as drafting policies and action plans related to sustainability, providing follow-up support for the
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sustainability activities of each division, and engaging in internal and external communication.

Furthermore, matters such as the direction of sustainability management and the status of companywide
sustainability activities are reported to and deliberated on by the Company's formal committees (such as the
Management Deliberation Meeting) and overseen by the Board of Directors. In addition, the divisions in charge

of individual sustainability themes promote activities to address these themes in collaboration with relevant

divisions and after deliberation on said themes by each expert committee.

Also, to promote and entrench a culture of sustainability and disseminate related information, the Company's
each division, the Group's domestic companies, and overseas regional headquarters appoint one sustainability

leader, who is tasked with ensuring the penetration of a culture of sustainability throughout workplaces.



2) Risk Management
The Company makes efforts to constantly ascertain the risks it faces and manages these risks from the
perspectives of damage mitigation and business continuity to minimize the impact of constantly diversifying
risks.

Specifically, the Company has established the Risk Management Meeting, chaired by the Chief Risk Officer
(CRO), who is responsible for groupwide risk management. The Risk Management Meeting is a groupwide
organization that confirms improvements to the Company's risk management structure and framework,
promotes the direction of important risk management activities based on the conditions and trends both inside
and outside the Company.

The Company has also appointed risk officers and risk managers responsible for risk management in each
business unit and at each regional headquarter and domestic and overseas Group company. In these ways, the
Company is taking steps to strengthen measures to prevent damages to its businesses during normal times and
measures to minimize damages during times of emergency.

In addition, the Company has created the Emergency First Response Manual in order to respond promptly and
accurately in the event of a crisis. This manual clarifies such matters as the criteria for determining the level of
urgency for a crisis, reporting standards, reporting routes, and basic policy for internal and external responses.
Furthermore, depending on the severity and level of urgency of the situation, the Company assembles special
countermeasure organizations through which the functional departments lead the way with measures to enact
an agile response geared toward minimizing damages.

The Company has identified potential risks related to life, the environment, credit, property, and business
activities based on the surrounding business environment and established major risk items from the
perspectives of frequency of occurrence and level of impact. The Company designates responsible functional
departments for each risk item and clarifies the reason for occurrence, preventive measures, initial response,
and recovery efforts for these items, thereby working to enhance its risk resiliency. In particular, the Company is
identifying risks toward which it invests resources to promote countermeasures as "key risk items." The
Company has also established activity plans and targets toward further enhancing its crisis management, and
the progress made toward these plans and targets is reported to the Risk Management Meeting. At the same
time, the Company has established quantitative KPls for companywide targets pertaining to each risk item, and
the status of risk management activities is also confirmed by the Board of Directors. Furthermore, the Company
implements inspections of this risk management process through internal audits and audits performed by
external organizations.

In terms of sustainability, in addition to climate change risks (natural disasters), the Company has designated
quality issues, environmental contamination, industrial accidents, fire and explosion accidents, information
security accidents, and other incidents (epidemics, war, and terrorism) as key risk items.

Risk Management Structure

Business groups

Risk Managomet Dopartments
Board of Directors Meeting ! responsible for risk
Chair: CRO MENAgement
N— Damestic Group companies
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Promotion Department headgquarters Cvorsans Group companias




(2) Climate Change

Amid the pressing crisis of climate change, the Company is exploring the ideal vision for a sustainable mobility
society and is accelerating its sustainability management with a view to maximizing the value of "green," which is a
target adopted under its Long-term Policy for 2030. In 2019, the Company pledged its support for the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). Since the pledge, the Company has been carrying out a
scenario analysis regarding the impact of climate change on the Company's businesses, the risks and
opportunities.

The Company has also been examining ways reflect the results of this analysis in the Company's business
strategies.

1) Governance

The Company deliberates on and determines important items related to climate change at the companywide
Safety, Health, and Environment Committee. This commitiee meets twice a year, in which members share
short-, medium-, and long-term targets set with the aim of realizing the "Eco Vision 2025 (Note)" environmental
management policy, and the issues and progress of activities related to the environment in general, including
the results of scenario analysis, and issues instructions on measures to be taken. The committee also
discusses and decides upon important items in the promotion of environmental management, such as
executing investment related to energy saving.

Matters deemed to significantly affect businesses, such as medium-term management strategies and major
invesitments, are discussed at meetings of the Management Deliberation Meeting or the Board of Directors.

In particular, with respect to carbon neutrality initiatives, the Board of Directors determines the Company's
targets. Based on these targets, the Strategy Deliberation Meeting and the Executive Workshop deliberate on
medium- and long-term policies and strategies, while the Annual Plan Meeting deliberates on short-term
policies, targets, and plans. Progress toward achieving the aforementioned targets is monitored at the
Management Deliberation Meeting and meetings of the Board of Directors in which all officers participate.

(Note) Eco Vision 2025: An action plan for the period up until 2025, a year that marks the midway point for
realizing sustainable communities and society by 2050, aiming to solve environmental and energy problems,
and coexist with nature through all the corporate activities.

2) Strategy

To understand the impact of climate change on the Company's businesses and to identify climate-related risks
and opportunities, the Company referenced the external scenarios of the International Energy Agency (IEA) and
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) and used them as benchmarks for the Company's
scenario analysis. Also, while confirming the scenario analysis for the automotive industry, the Company
compared and contrasted this analysis with the Company's awareness of the business environment that exists
under the Company’s medium- to long-term strategies to hypothesize comprehensive scenarios. Upon doing
so, the Company was able to identify climate-related opportunities and risks by analyzing the differences
between the Company medium- to long-term strategies and these scenarios.

In terms of transition risk, the Company has defined the Beyond 2 Degrees Scenario (B2DS) and the
Sustainable Development Scenario (SDS) of the IEA's World Energy Outlook as "promotional" and "ambitious"
scenarios, respectively. For the scope of these scenarios, we quantified Group CO2 emissions, carbon tax,
crude oil prices, renewable energy rate, and the rate of new electric vehicle (xEV) introduction by 2040, and
analyzed opportunities and risks based on the differences between these scenarios and Group strategies. Also,
with regard to physical risks, the Company has defined the RCP8.5 and RCP6.0 scenarios of the Fifth Report of
the IPCC as "stagnant” and "promotion" scenarios, respectively. The Company visualized aspects such as
weather disasters, rising sea levels, deteriorating eco systems, and water and food shortages in a qualitative
manner and analyzed opportunities and risks based on the differences between these scenarios and Group
strategies.

10



Major risks, major opportunities and response measures are as follows:

the accelerated
introduction of carbon
pricing

Carbon costs could be
added to all in-vehicle
products due to the
expansion and increasing
strictness of international
regulations, such as
carbon taxes and
emissions trading
systems.

to renewable energy in
manufacturing activities
» Continue to promote
activities to conserve
energy and enhance
energy efficiency in the
production process

Major risks
L T— _ _ _ Financial Response
Key items !/ Level of WajerpaiRntidbRatcial inpact Response measures sl
y impaet impact (FY 2026) P (FY 2024)
(Note 3) (Note 3)
New controls Long-term | Decline in revenue ¥400.0 billion » Accelerate the ¥80.0 billion
and ! Relatively | against the backdrop of development of energy-
regulations high increasingly strict saving technologies
placed on the regulations on fuel for products powered
Company's efficiency and exhaust by electricity with a
existing gas view to extending
products and The Company expects driving distance
services even tighter regulations * Accelerate
on fuel efficiency as well development aimed at
as acceleration in the enhancing fuel
transition to xEVs, efficiency of internal
including HEVs combustion engines in
(comprising 47% of all HEVs and other
vehicles in 2030). Non- vehicles to respond to
compliance with new regulations on fuel
regulations resulting from efficiency
an inability to adapt to
changes could cause a
decline in unit sales.
Increased Long-term | Decline in revenue due | ¥110.0 billion * Implement measures | ¥9.3 billion
severity and / Relatively | to suspended plant to mitigate the impact
occurrence of | high operations and supply of disasters on
abnormal chain disruptions buildings, etc., and
weather such Revenue could decline strengthen risk
as cyclones due to damage to in- management in the
and floods house plants or supply supply chain through
chain interruptions that such measures as
result in a suspension of ensuring multiple
plant operations in Japan suppliers for
and greater Asia, where components
the Company conducts +» Connect our plants
66% of our overall across the globe by
production and where the using IT and loT and
possibility of abnormal establish a global
weather occurring is high. production structure
that can immediately
respond to changing
production needs
Carbon pricing | Medium- Decline in cost ¥12.0 billion » Strategic and ¥3.0 billion
mechanism term / High | competitiveness due to incremental transition

1




Major opportunities

Timeframe ' _ _ Financial Response
Key items / Level of Magor:potential fnancial impact Response measures cast
y : ¢ impact (FY 2026) P (FY 2024)
ImMpat (Note 3) (Note 3)
Development | Medium- Increase in revenue due | ¥360.0 billion * Accelerate the ¥90.0 billion
of new term / to higher demand for development of
products and High XEVs technologies related to
services Rise in demand for electrification—including
through R&D inverters and thermal power-saving
and products related to technologies and
technological electrification and for compact high-output
innovation technologies such as heat technologies—as well
pumps that improve the as the development of
heat efficiency of xEVs heat management
technologies
* Promote the
development of engine
control systems and
other technologies that
respond to alternative
fuel (e-fuel, hydrogen,
etc.)
Diversification | Long-term | Increase in revenue AgTech, FA « Create technologies ¥17.0 billion
of business / Medium | following higher and hydrogen | such as AgTech that
activities demand for business leverage sensor, control,
decarbonization ¥300.0 billion and robot technologies
technologies (FY2031) and create energy
Creation of business utilization technologies,
opportunities in such non- such as those that
automotive fields as leverage exhaust gas
agricultural technology purification technologies
(AgTech), factory « Actively use business
automation (FA) and alliances
hydrogen business
(SOEC (Note1) and
SOFC (Note2))by
applying environmental
technologies fostered in
the automotive field and
development of new
technologies (energy
utilization technologies) to
capture, store, and
recycle CO2
Utilization of Medium- Reduced energy costs ¥73.0 billion Continue rigorous ¥10.0 billion
more effective | term/ through the promotion energy saving activities;
production Relatively | of energy conservation adopt low carbon
and logistics high at plants worldwide materials, equipment,
processes If the Company promotes and production
enhanced energy processes; enhance
efficiency and is able to production process
achieve our target under efficiency through the
Eco Vision 2025 of introduction of Factory-
reducing the amount of loT; and promote the
energy used per unit by development of energy
half compared with fiscal saving production
2013, the Company could technologies
achieve a CO2 emissions
reduction of approximately
1.85 million tons per year
and reduce energy costs.

(Note 1) SOEC: Solid Oxide Electrolysis Cell
(Note 2) SOFC: Solid Oxide Fuel Cell

(Note 3) Financial impact (FY 2026) and response cost (FY 2024) are tentative values as of June 20, 2024. The finalized
values will be shown in the "Integrated Report 2024" to be issued at the end of September 2024.
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3) Risk Management

Amid the rapidly occurring changes in the business environment, the Company is striving to ascertain the
constantly diversifying risks and implementing risk management from the perspectives of minimizing damage
and ensuring business continuity. Climate change-related risks are reported to the companywide Safety, Health,
and Environment Committee, which identifies key items and clarifies the Company's response.

Also, the Company has designated climate change-related risks (physical risks) as one of the major risks
toward which the Risk Management Meeting should particularly invest resources and promote initiatives. Based
on this designation, the Company is strengthening the Company's response to these risks on a groupwide basis
from the perspective of overall risk management.

4) Metrics and Targets

In fiscal 2022, in light of the progress based on Eco Vision 2025, social demands and expectations, the
Company adopted a more ambitious goal of becoming carbon neutral and commenced activities to reach this
goal accordingly.

The Company clarified specific targets for this goal in the Mid-term Policy for 2025. At the same time, the
Company incorporated a sustainability target pertaining to the Company's material issues into part of the
Company's management targets. As previously mentioned, the status of progress and follow-up regarding these
targets are shared not only at the companywide Safety, Health, and Environment Committee, but also at the
Management Deliberation Meeting and the Board of Directors.

The specific company targets are as follows:

Climate Change-related Targets (CO: Emissions Reduction) (Benchmark year: Fiscal 2021)
Component Annazi T Lie
procurement Scope 3 (Upstream) Meonozukuri Scope 1 and 2 Product use Scope 3 (Downstream)
Reduction of 25% Redl y of 25%
Fy2031 % ks FYZ2026 Carbon neutral FY2031 ERRNEH o2 e
|ecumalent to well below 2°C7) scuvalent to well below 2C7)

FY2051 Carbon neutral FY2036

Carbon neutra

The target of keeping termperature Increases wel beiow 2°C which i a Scope 3 tamet under the 1.5°C standard

i) Scope 1 and 2 Carbon-Neutral Monozukuri
<Aim> Achieve Complete Carbon Neutrality in Monozukuri
The Company aims to achieve carbon neutrality in Monozukuri by lowering CO2 emissions through energy
consumption reduction based on more efficient manufacturing processes; by using such renewable energy
sources as sunlight; and by developing and commercializing technologies that capture CO2 emitted in
production processes and reuse it as energy.
The Company will switch 100% of our electricity to renewable energy sources and use carbon credits for gas
to become carbon neutral by fiscal 2026. By fiscal 2036, the Company will no longer use carbon credits and
be completely carbon neutral.

ii) Scope 3 (Upstream) Reduction of CO2 Emissions in the Supply Chain
<Aim> Realize Carbon Neutrality through Collaboration between DENSO and Suppliers
Since the progress of the initiatives conducted by suppliers varies from one supplier to another, the Company
will monitor progress through active dialogue with suppliers and provide support suited to their issues. For
example, the Company will provide information on energy-saving know-how and help suppliers procure
renewable energy and transition to low-carbon materials.
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iii) Scope 3 (Downstream) Carbon Neutrality for Electric Vehicle Components
<Aim> Contribute to the Electrification of Cars to Reduce CO2 Emissions to the Greatest Extent Possible
The Company will help reduce CO2 emissions from vehicle use by developing products and systems that
support the popularization of HEVs, BEVs, FCEVs, and other xEVs. In addition, the Company will apply the
electrification technologies cultivated in the automotive industry to the field of air mobility in an effort to
significantly reduce CO2 emissions in all facets of mobility.

iv) Reduction of CO2 Emissions from Energy Use
<Aim> Realize an Energy-Recycling Society through the Development and Popularization of Technologies
That Make Effective Use of Renewable Energy
The Company will establish technologies that store and reuse energy in a highly efficient manner, regardless
of location or time, and work to popularize them on a global basis. By doing so, the Company will help realize
an energy-recycling society.

CO:z Emissions
(Millions of t-CO:ze)

2

Reduction
of 26%

0 2021 2022 2023  (FY)
(Banchmark year)
Notes: 1. The results figures reflect the use of carbon credits.
2. The targets are production bases in Japan and overseas (including the
Group’s manufacturing companies).
3. Fiscal 2021 results have been adjusted for the effect of the reduced
production that accompanied the COVID-19 pandemic.
(Note 1) The Company calculated CO2 emissions (global, scope 1 + scope 2 emissions) onward to align with the Basic
Guidelines on Accounting for Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions.
(Note 2) The Company has undergone an independent third-party verification provided by SGS Japan Inc. since fiscal
2021.
(Note 3) The Company's CO2 emissions in fiscal 2024 as of May 31, 2024 according to internal calculations amounted to
950 thousand tons. This amount is to undergo third-party verification in January 2025.

(Supplemental Information)

International Certification of Reduction Targets

The Company has established targets for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions by fiscal 2031. These
targets are based on scientific evidence and consistent with the goal of limiting the global average temperature
increase to 1.5 °C above pre-industrial levels, which is set forth by the Paris Agreement. As a result, the
Company's targets have obtained Science Based Targets (SBT) certification from the internationally recognized
Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi (Note)).

(Note) The SBTi is a joint initiative established by World Wide Fund for Nature, CDP, the World Resources
Institute, and the United Nations Global Compact. The SBTi formulates guidance that enables companies to set
specific targets for the volumes and timeframes of greenhouse gas emission reductions. SBT (Science Based
Targets) certification is granted to companies whose targets are recognized to be in conformity with scientific
findings .
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(3) Human Capital
1) Initiatives related to human resource development, including ensuring diversity of human resources
i) Strategy

Background to Emphasis on Strengthening Human Capital

The Company believes that human resource development supports manufacturing and R&D. This has been
philosophy since our founding in 1949. Accordingly, the Company views people as most important form of
management capital, and the Company has tirelessly accumulated competence that allows us to provide new
solutions and address social issues. The Company calls this competence "the ability to turn ideas into reality."
Thanks to the Company's accumulated competence, the Company has created more than 180 world-first
technologies and products. In 1954, the Company established technical training schools to strengthen its
technologies and skills. Tracing its roots back to these schools, DENSO Industrial School continues to train
technicians. To date, the school's students have won more than 70 medals at the WorldSkills Competition. As
the automotive industry undergoes major structural changes, the Company aims to provide new solutions not
only in mobility but also in industry and society. To these ends, the Company will enhance our ability to turn
mass production ideas into reality which entails meeting quality, cost, and supply requirements as well as the
Company's ability to turn business ideas into reality by realizing customer value and services-based business
models and partnerships with companies in other industries.

PROGRESS: A Vision and Action Plan for Our People and Organization

Aiming to become a "group of professionals with the ability to turn ideas into reality," the Company has
established the PROGRESS vision and action plan for our people and organization. Under this plan, since
fiscal 2022 the Company has been reforming its organization as well as specific human resource initiatives
and systems so that employees can continue to evolve and pursue ambitious initiatives. The Company's ideal
employees are professionals committed to taking on the challenge of achieving new personal bests, while the
Company's ideal organization provides a platform for the co-creation initiatives and interaction of diverse
professionals. The Company believes that, by combining the strengths of people and organization, the
Company can develop distinctive ability to turn ideas into reality even further. In line with this belief, the
Company has set out the PROGRESS vision and action plan, which reflects commitment to professionalism
as well as to progress (evolution and ambitious initiatives). The plan calls on the Company to support
employees in continuing their ambitious initiatives and evolution by reforming human resource initiatives and
systems since fiscal 2022. These reform efforts are focusing on four pillars: career, learning and growing,
evaluation and compensation, and workstyles and culture.

Four Pillars of PROGRESS
Career: PROGRESS Design

Career design system, strengthening of specialization, career innovation pro
gram, in-house recrustment, etc

- g Fostering of mamnagement leaders, trainee system, co-creation program for

Leaming and Growing: PROGRESS Development g g€ 9
cross-industry partnerships, etc.

Role- and performance-based evaluation and compensation system, benefits

that suppart diverse lifestyles, etc

Evaluation and Compensation: PROGRESS Drive

WDI'kSMQ‘S and Culture: PROGRESS Di\l’@?Sil’Y 5 Digital Imitiatives to enhance engagement, development of personnel with competence

in digital transformation, diversity (empowerment of women), etc

The Company's Approach to Human Capital-Focused Management (Value Creation Path)

The remainder of this section provides an overview of the human capital enhancement initiatives being
implemented under PROGRESS as well as the benefits they will achieve and the value they will provide.
Reform of human resource initiatives and systems that anticipate the business environment will achieve the
Company's personnel and organizational objectives. With respect to the personnel, the Company will increase
the number of employees realizing their ambitions and feeling glad to be working with. As for the organization,
the Company will achieve the qualitative and guantitative enhancement of human resources that is needed to
realize our Strategies for "Green" and "Peace of Mind" and principles. By setting out quantitative key
performance indicators (KPIs) for both the enhancement of employee engagement and the transformation of
its human resource portfolio, the Company will ensure the reform of human resource initiatives and systems.
However, reform of initiatives and systems does not produce immediate results. Therefore, the Company is
carefully managing initiatives and systems with the goal of allowing frontline employees to really feel the
benefits of reforms before they change their mindsets and behavior. Such frontline management capabilities
are essential in maximizing the effectiveness of initiatives and achieving desired results.
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To measure the value provided by human capital and facilitate the aforementioned frontline management, the
Company has defined business portfolio transformation and the ability of people and organization to turn
ideas into reality as forms of value. The ability of people and organization to turn ideas into reality is an
indicator of how effectively human capital is being utilized and of whether value is being created for society.
For this indicator, the Company uses the productivity of investment in human capital, which is added value
divided by investment in human capital. Business portfolio transformation refers to business-related value,
which is created by simultaneously realizing profitability and the "green" and "peace of mind" principles
through the inclusion in business portfolio of growth businesses as replacements for businesses involved in
the de-emphasis and discontinuation of internal combustion engine products.

By heightening employee engagement and augmenting the quality and quantity of personnel, the Company
will empower employees to create even more added value as a "group of professionals with the ability to turn
ideas into reality," thereby increasing the financial and social value that we provide.

Vision and action plan for our people and organization
PROGRESS e @) X o = e P

Apming to become a group of professiorais with

o s A = Py c—mered to Platform for the mo-crest ion offnms pnd MNew soliminns that henefs
he ability to tum ideas into reality and continuing prnaseg i purscnad busts ot ctioshs of s pvotaaconal WG B oy
o evohee gt pursue ambitious itietives

Activities (Input) Results (Output) Value (Outcome)
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ii) Metrics and Targets
a) Initiatives to enhance employee engagement

Enhancement of Engagement
The Company conducts an employee engagement survey annually, targeting all of roughly 45,000
employees, who belong to approximately 2,500 workplaces. The survey results show that job engagement
corresponds to individuals' willingness to take on ambitious goals and that organizational engagement
corresponds to the ability of workplace teams to achieve results. The percentage of affirmative responses
with respect to job satisfaction and positivity toward workstyle (job engagement) as well as in relation to
workplace satisfaction and attachment to the Company (organizational engagement) increased from 70%
in fiscal 2022 to 75% in fiscal 2024. The goal is to raise affirmative responses to 78% by fiscal 2026.
Based on analysis of the survey results, the Company is improving initiatives. More specifically, the
Company is helping employees realize career goals and creating open workplaces full of vitality important
initiatives for increasing job and organizational engagement.
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Helping Employees Realize Career Goals

With the aim of helping employees envision the professionals they want to become, the Company holds
age group-based training that covers employees from their 20s through to their 50s and provides them with
opportunities to reflect on their career plans. Moreover, the Company aims to achieve a 100%
implementation of career interviews and dialogues between supervisors and subordinates. In particular,
targeting approximately 3,200 supervisors, the Company holds mutual study sessions on cultivating
empathy with the Company’s goals by effectively instilling in personnel an understanding of the purpose of
the organization and the significance of their work. The Company also provides these supervisors with
practical training sessions on conducting dialogues with subordinates and supporting career realization
three times a year. Further, the Company is enhancing its career consultation office and various other
facets of the Company's career support system. In addition, the Company is providing support by
expanding in-house recruitment; increasing the number of employees who are trained outside the
Company, including training at companies in other industries; and developing an environment for self-
education on specializations and skills.

Creating Open Workplaces Full of Vitality

Based on the annual engagement survey, the Company classifies workplace conditions into 11 categories
based on levels of openness, job performance, and willingness to take on ambitious initiatives. The
Company then encourages proactive improvement by giving all workplaces feedback on the results and
examples of best practice. For workplaces with numerous issues, the Company uses organizational
development methods to provide support that is aimed at promoting mutual understanding between
subordinates and supervisors. Thanks to these efforts, in fiscal 2024 the number of workplaces where
employees show a high level of willingness to take on ambitious initiatives rose by 160 workplaces
(approximately 6% of all workplaces) year on year.

Metrics Results (FY 2023) Results (FY 2024) Targets (FY 2026)
The rate of affirmative
responses to work 73% 75% 78%
engagement

(Note) The rate of affirmative responses to work engagement is calculated based on the Company figures.

b) Initiatives toward human resource portfolio reform

Human Resource Portfolio for Business Portfolio Transformation

Aiming to augment the quality and quantity of personnel so that the Company can simultaneously realize
profitability and strategies and "green" and "peace of mind" principles, the Company has categorized
human resource portfolio into three types of professionals: management professionals, specialists, and
diverse professionals. Based on these three categories, the Company is acquiring, developing, and
deploying personnel.

Management Professionals

Management Professionals Who Will Lead a Global DENSO

The Company holds global human resource development conferences, which are attended by all senior
executive officers and focus on the discussion and implementation of training and placement that
maximizes the performance of management candidates. The aim of these conferences is to systematically
produce globally competent management leaders who will play key roles in business management and
execution. Dedicated talent managers support the growth of diverse management leadership candidates
through detailed understanding of their aspirations and strengths. In addition, Global Leadership
Development Program is strengthening the development of local personnel overseas through mutual study
sessions and the assignment of personnel to global projects. The program is tasked with fostering local
personnel so that they account for 50% of the heads of overseas bases by fiscal 2031.
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Specialists

Specialists Who Will Innovate and Create Value

With sights set on a new era, the Company is advancing a companywide reassignment of personnel from
businesses involved in the de-emphasis and discontinuation of internal combustion engine products to
growth businesses. Through inhouse recruitment, stepped-up hiring, and other measures, the Company
will realize a large-scale transition in human resources by deploying approximately 4,000 personnel to the
priority fields of vehicle electrification and mobility systems by fiscal 2026. At the same time, by providing
opportunities for exchanges and collaborations among personnel in the mechanical parts, electronics, and
software fields, the Company will develop professionals in the systems field who are able to design optimal
combinations of products and functions from an upstream perspective. In the energy management field,
which is becoming increasingly important as vehicle electrification progresses, plans call for doubling the
current number of employees by fiscal 2026.

For employees, the Company is enhancing measures to increase expertise in each field. In the all
important software field, since fiscal 2022 the Company has been operating the Sommelier Certification
Program, which objectively certifies the skills of software engineers, as well as recurrent education
programs on software, which support personnel scheduled to transfer from positions in the hardware field
to positions in the software field. As of March 2023, these recurrent programs have trained 210 employees.
Further, in fiscal 2023 the Company redefined and visualized the employee specializations required
companywide into 40 fields and 535 categories. The Company also categorized and visualized the
specialization of approximately 15,000 office workers into five levels. Going forward, the Company will use
the data from these recategorizations to strengthen the specialization of each employee.

Other initiatives include measures to improve the digital transformation literacy of all employees. Having
categorized and visualized the digital tool utilization of all office workers into four levels, the Company will
create opportunities for acquiring skills and putting them into practice with the goal of raising the
percentage of personnel capable of advanced utilization of the latest digital tools to 50% by fiscal 2025.
Regarding the approximately 22,000 employees engaged in frontline production operations, in fiscal 2022
the Company began providing one digital terminal to each employee, and the Company plans to complete
distribution of digital terminals to all such employees by March 2024. Regardless of whether they work in
offices or plants, all employees will use digital technologies to revolutionize the way they work.

Diverse Professionals

Diverse Professionals Whose Individuality, Values, and Experience Invigorate the Company

The Company is advancing global initiatives to realize a working environment and organizational culture
that empowers diverse professionals regardless of their gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age,
race, nationality, religion, and disabilities as well as unseen differences such as experience and values. As
part of efforts to empower female employees, the Company has established KPIs for: recruitment, balance
between work and life events, and promotion. the Company has set targets for the number of female
employees in career-track administrative and technical positions as well as the number of production-
related female managers. Also, the Company conducts diversity training for the supervisors of female
employees and organizes roundtable discussions with female employees who serve as role models for
other women. In recognition of such efforts as introduction of a partnership system and holding of events to
promote understanding during Pride Month, the Company has received the highest rating of Gold in the
PRIDE Index, which evaluates LGBTQ+ initiatives for sexual minorities.

Metrics

Results (FY 2023)

Results (FY 2024)

Targets (FY 2026)

The number of female
management positions

Business 139
Technical 136

Business 153
Technical 152

Business 200
Technical 200

(Note) The number of female management positions is calculated based on the Company figures.
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2) Initiatives for Internal Environmental Maintenance
i) Strategy
a) Safety and Health
Improvement of safety and health management is absolutely essential to ensure the business foundation
as a global company. As such, the Group is working to achieve continuous improvements in safety and
health based on the premise that creating safe and comfortable working conditions is the best way to
realize both human dignity and high productivity. This policy is built on the fundamental principles of safety,
health, and the environment established by the Company in 1969.

b) Promoting Employee Health
Good physical and mental health provides the source for working in a lively and energetic manner and is
essential for ensuring the happiness of the employees and their families. The Company positions
promoting the health of its employees as an important management task and is therefore moving forward
with "Health and Productivity Management (Note)." The Company announced its Health Declaration in
September 2016. At the same time, to encourage activities that promote employee health and raise the
level of health awareness in the workplace, the Company is working to enhance its health-related initiatives
from the perspective of both physical and mental.
In addition, to promote health management at all the group companies, the Company formulated the
"DENSO Group Health and Productivity Management Basic Principle” (February 2019). The Group will
share this basic principle, and implement activities suited to the current conditions in each country and
region. Accordingly, the Company will strive to improve each associate's health awareness (Health
Literacy) and create more comfortable working environment.
(Note) The term "Health and Productivity Management" is a registered trademark of Nonprofit
Organization Kenkokeiei.

ii) Metrics and Targets
a) Safety and Health
Targets for safety marks (scoring depending on scale and type of accidents; the lower the number the
better the score) have been set to improve safety and health. The cause of each accident is assessed in
terms of the impact on operations, equipment and administration to prevent accidents before they occur.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, the Company's focus was on preventing explosions, fires,
and serious accidents, and preventing Type 1 accidents involving working parts, heavy objects, chemicals,
etc. The Company conducted safety communication patrols led by division leaders, and all employees
participated in risk re-evaluations of heavy object/chemical work, and inspections to prevent explosions and
fires of high-risk equipment. As a result, the Company was able to maintain a record of no explosions, fires,
or other serious accidents, and achieved its safety mark targets for both Group companies in Japan and
overseas. However, accidents involving equipment that suffers from frequent emergency stops are on the
rise, and the Company's investigation into the causes behind this revealed that the causes for these
accidents included "procedural errors and omissions due to hastiness in production." Once again, the
Company will promote "correct work that makes safety a top priority" with the participation of all employees,
and strengthen its approach to production environments where frequent stoppages and other situations
create a desire to rush work.

Safety marks

FY 2024 Targets Results Evaluation
The Company 45.0 points 41.5 points (@]
Group companies in Japan 31.5 points 24.0 points (@]
Group companies overseas 44.5 points 44.0 points O

(Note) The lower the score, the better.
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b) Promoting Employee Health
The Company has established its original "Employee lifestyle score (Note 1)," an indicator based on data
from individual employees’ checkups, which corresponds to the health behavior and health data targets set
in "Healthy Japan 21 (Note 2)," and has set the companywide average value as a management target.
Furthermore, the Company makes office health leaders aware of the lifestyle scores for their respective
workplace, thereby enabling them to formulate effective health action plans.
Based on their lifestyle scores, the Company distributes written notifications to employees that contain
advice on their strengths and weaknesses as well as information on how they compare to employees of the
same age and what kinds of efforts they should make in the future. In fiscal 2024, by raising the percentage
of employees with healthy lifestyle habits, these activities aim to increase the companywide average
lifestyle score by 10% compared with fiscal 2018.
In addition, Denso Kenko Station (DKS) is a health application that was developed in-house that allows
users to register not only lifestyle scores but also health checkup data, dietary data, such as calories and
salt content of food consumed at the cafeteria, weight, step counts, blood pressure, and other data.
Employees can utilize the application in their day-to-day health management.
(Note 1) "Employee lifestyle score" calculation method is a total score of 100 points, consisting of 80 points
for health behaviors and 20 points for health data. Calculations are based on the results of employees’
annual health checkups.
(Note 2) Health Japan 21 is a policy formulated by the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare to promote
the health of Japanese population with the goal of preventing lifestyle-related diseases and extending
healthy life expectancy.

Employee lifestyle score

FY 2022 2023 2024
Targets 76.0 points 77.0 points 77.0 points
Results 74.0 points 74.5 points 74.7 points

(Note) Employee Lifestyle Score is calculated based on the Company figures.
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5. Risk management
(1) Business environmental risks
Economic risk
Demand for auto parts, which accounts for the majority of the Group's global operating revenue, is easily affected
by the economic situation in the countries and regions where the Group makes sales. Accordingly, an economic
downturn and a resulting decrease in demand for auto parts in the Group's major markets, including Japan, North
America, Europe, and Asia, may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Further, Group operations can be indirectly affected by the economic situation in regions where competitors have
their manufacturing bases. For example, if a competitor is able to employ local labor at a lower cost and provide
equivalent products at prices below those of the Group, this may adversely affect sales. Further, if the local
currency of regions where parts and raw materials are sourced falls, there is a chance that the manufacturing
costs not only for the Group, but also for other manufacturers, will fall. As a result of these trends, export and
price wars may intensify and have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Exchange rate risk
Operations within the Group include the sale and manufacture of products around the world. All regional items in
local currency, including sales, costs, and assets are converted to yen for the purpose of preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Based on the exchange rate used in conversion, even though the value of
items has not changed as denominated in local currency, there is a chance that the amount expressed in yen
after the conversion could change. In general, a strong yen (in particular against the U.S. dollar, euro, and yuan,
which constitute a major part of the Group's sales) has an adverse effect on the Group's operations, and a weak
yen has a positive effect on the Group's operations.

For Group operations involving manufacturing in Japan for export, a strong yen against other currencies
decreases the worldwide price competitiveness of its products and can have an adverse effect on operating
results. The Group performs local production and currency hedging in order to reduce risks associated with
fluctuation in exchange rates and interest rates, and makes efforts to minimize the adverse effect of short-term
fluctuations in the exchange rates of major currencies, including the U.S. dollar, euro, and yen. However, as a
result of medium- and long-term movements in exchange rates, there are cases where procurement,
manufacturing, distribution, and sales cannot be performed exactly as planned. As a result, exchange rate
movements may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Raw materials and component supply risk

The Group procures raw materials and components used to manufacture its products from numerous external
vendors. Although basic business contracts have been executed with these external vendors, and transactions
are generally stable, there is no guarantee that there will not be shortages or increased prices for raw materials
and components due to fluctuations in market conditions, unforeseen accidents at vendors, or other such events.
In such cases, the Group could incur higher manufacturing costs or be forced to halt production, which may in
turn have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.
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(2) Risks related to business activities
New product development risk
While the Group believes that it can continue to develop original and appealing new products by investing in R&D
with the target of around 9% of revenue, the product development and sales process are, by its nature, complex
and uncertain, and are subject to the following risks:
- There is no guarantee of acquiring sufficient funds and resources for investments in new products and new
technologies.

There is no guarantee that the long-term investments and allocation of large amounts of resources will lead to

the development of successful new products and the creation of new technologies.

- It is not certain that the Group will be able to correctly predict which new products and new technologies will
earn the support of the Group's customers, and there is no guarantee that the sales of these products will be
successful.

- There is no guarantee that newly developed products or technologies will be protected as proprietary
intellectual property rights.

- As a result of fast-paced technological advances and changes in market needs, there is a possibility that the
Group's products will become outdated.

- As a result of delays in the commercialization of new technologies under development, there is a possibility that

market demands might not be met.

Beginning with the risks outlined above, if the Group is unable to fully anticipate industry and market changes,
and is unable to develop attractive new products, this may result in a drop in future growth and profitability and
may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Pricing risk
Price competition in the automotive industry is fierce. In particular, demands for price reductions by automobile
manufacturers have increased in recent years.

Further, the Group expects that it will face intensified competition in the component fields and regional markets
that it operates in. Competitors include other component manufacturers, some of which are providing products at
lower prices than the Group. Also, in line with the evolution of the automotive electronics business, there has
been a rise in new competitors, such as consumer-electronics manufacturers and partnerships between existing
competitors, and therefore, there is a possibility that they will quickly gain a large share of the market.

While we believe that the Group is the leading component manufacturer in the world and continues to develop
automotive parts that are technically advanced, of high quality, and high added value, there is no guarantee that
the Group will be able to compete effectively in the future. There is always a possibility that pricing pressure and
ineffectively competitive practices on the Group's part will lead to a decrease in customers, which may have an
adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Product defect risk

The Group manufactures a variety of products to meet internationally recognized quality control standards at
factories around the world. However, there is no guarantee that all of the Group's products are defect-free and
that there will be no product recalls in the future. Also, while the Group does have product liability insurance
coverage, there is no guarantee that this insurance will completely cover any compensation that the Group may
be forced to pay. Further, the Group may not be able to continue to subscribe to this insurance under conditions
acceptable to the Group. Product defects that lead to large-scale product recalls or product liability compensation
could have a significant cost and large impact on the Group's reputation, and this may lead to a decrease in sales

and adversely affect the Group's operating results and financial condition.
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OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer) customer risk

The OEM business, which constitutes the majority of the Group's business, serves automobile manufacturers
around the world and supplies a wide range of products, including Thermal Systems, Powertrain Systems,
Mobility Electronics, Electrification Systems, and Advanced Devices in automotive parts. Sales to OEM
customers may be affected by factors that the Group cannot control, such as the operating results of OEM
customers. In addition, demands for reduced prices from OEM customers may reduce the Group's profit margins.
Further, there is a possibility that OEM customers' business downturns, unforeseen contract cancellations,
changes in OEM customers procurement policies, and price cuts to satisfy large customers may have an adverse
effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Sales to the Toyota Motor Corporation and its subsidiaries account for roughly half of the Group's sales. Such
sales made to a specific client group can be significantly impacted by the operating results of the customer.

Corporate acquisition or capital alliance risk

The Group aims to expand business, enhance functions, or develop new technologies by strengthening existing
partnerships or forming new partnerships. To achieve this, the Group establishes new companies or invests in
existing companies through alliances with other companies, and there is the possibility that the Group will
continue to invest in the future.

The Group executes new investments only after holding extensive discussions from a wide range of perspectives,
but if there is a downturn in the value of a company the Group has invested in, or if there is a disagreement with a
partnering company regarding strategy or priorities, it may not be possible to enjoy benefits commensurate with
the investment, which would make it difficult to recover the amount invested and possibly have an adverse effect
on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Potential risks of international activities and overseas expansion
The proportion of manufacturing and sales activities carried out in North America, Europe, and Asia, has been
increasing in recent years.

Expansion into these overseas markets has the following inherent risks, which, if they materialize, may have an
adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

- Unforeseen changes in laws or regulations

- Unfavorable political or economic conditions

- Difficulties in employing and retaining personnel

- Inadequate social infrastructure that may adversely affect the Group's business activities

- The potentially adverse impact of tax regulations

- Social or economic turmoil caused by strikes, terrorist incidents, military conflict, epidemics, and other events

Risks related to increasing importance of environmental issues

The Group complies with domestic and overseas environmental laws and regulations, and works to reduce its
environmental impact and realize highly efficient transportation. Specifically, the Group is striving to reduce the
environmental impact of its business activities, pursue environmental efficiency and resource productivity, and
develop products that conform with environmental regulations in accordance with the Group's environmental
policy DENSO Eco Vision 2025.
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However, the rising global population and the pursuit of economic development and convenience are accelerating
the pace of consumption of energy resources, and therefore, risks and concerns about global warming, resource
depletion, environmental contamination, etc. are increasing. In line with this trend, environmental efforts are
becoming increasingly important, and various regulations may be revised or strengthened in the future, and
immediate actions as well as initiatives targeting the future may be required. If such actions are inadequate, it
may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition, such as a decrease in
product sales, limits on production volume, or a decline in reputation.

Climate change risks

Based on the Paris Agreement adopted at the 21st Session of the Conference of the Parties to the United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (COP21), initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions are
being promoted worldwide to curtail the increase in average temperature. Moreover, the governments of major
countries, which include those in Europe as well as the United States, China, and Japan, have recently declared
their intention to achieve carbon neutrality and initiatives for that purpose constitute a key element of their
national growth strategies. In view of this background, the Group considers actions concerning climate change

will not be constraints on economic growth but rather be a source of competitiveness.

The Group is exploring the ideal vision for a sustainable mobility society with a view to maximize the value of
"green,"” which is a target adopted under its Long-term Policy. Referring to the framework of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), the Group analyzed the impact of climate change on its
businesses and identified climate-related opportunities and risks based on comparisons with hypothesized
scenarios and considered how best to reflect the results of the analysis in its business strategies.

Recently, the climate change risks described below may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results
and financial condition. As regards a risk posed by transition to a carbon neutral society, if the Group is unable to
appropriately respond to regulations on fuel efficiency and exhaust gas in relation to climate change and
increasing electrification with its current products, the Group may lose sales opportunities. Moreover, physical
risks include increased severity and occurrence of abnormal weather, such as cyclones and floods, and may
result in a decline in revenue due to suspended plant operations and supply chain disruptions.

In order to deal with these risks, with regard to transition risks, the Group is accelerating R&D and promoting
customer proposals in the Electrification Systems, Thermal Systems, and Powertrain Systems businesses to
respond to new regulations on fuel efficiency and demand for electrification. As for physical risks, the Group is
implementing countermeasures for meteorological disasters (including flooding) in new and existing buildings and
is also strengthening supply chain risk management by diversifying suppliers for components and other materials.

Please refer to "4. Sustainability philosophy and initiatives" for more information.

Information security risks
The Group uses a variety of information technology internal networks and systems. Information technology, such

as advanced driver assistance and automated driving, is also used in the Group's in-vehicle products.

The Group has constructed security measures for its internal networks, production lines, and other assets and
provide further security literacy training for employees, in order to protect information assets and realize a stable
supply of products. In addition, the Group is developing technology to protect in-vehicle products from
cyberattacks, building its own system to ensure that they are installed, and working on establishing the operation.
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However, fraudulent acts such as cyberattacks are becoming more threatening, and the Group could become a
target. In the event of cyberattacks and other fraudulent acts that greatly exceeds expectations, interruptions of
important operations, leaks of confidential information, adverse effects on the functioning of in-vehicle products,
or other issues, could occur. This could lead to loss of competitiveness or a decline in reputation, which could in
turn have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

(3) Other risks
Risks of natural disasters and power outages
In order to minimize the potential negative impact of manufacturing lines being shut down in the event of a large-
scale natural disaster, accident, epidemic, or other such events, the Group carries out disaster-prevention
inspections and equipment checks on a regular basis.

The Group has also formulated a business continuity plan (BCP) and emergency action manuals in order to
mitigate the impacts of such disasters. However, there is no guarantee that the Group can totally prevent or
reduce the impact of stoppages caused by natural disasters or other events at the Group's manufacturing
facilities, or at the Group's corporate customers or suppliers. For example, many of the Group's places of
business are in the Tokai region of Japan, and if a disastrous earthquake were to hit this region, there is a
possibility that the Group's production and delivery activities would be suspended.

Legal proceedings

The Group endeavors to ensure continual legal compliance in the course of its business activities. Nevertheless,
the Group has been subject to the alleged violation of antitrust law or competition law in connection with certain
past transactions regarding specific auto parts from the authorities in certain countries, coping with the lawsuit
against the Company (along with its certain subsidiaries) filed by a certain customer in a U.K. court, and engaged
in settlement negotiations with major customers (certain automobile manufacturers). Accordingly, such an event
may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.

Human rights

The Group's Sustainability Policy and the Code of Conduct clearly prohibit labor practices or similar actions that
infringe upon human rights, and the Group has worked to ensure that these policies are thoroughly shared across
the Group.

Recently, initiatives toward respecting human rights in business are becoming even more important for global
corporations. In this environment, the Group believes that the Group needs to further promote human rights-
related initiatives and has formulated the DENSO Group Human Rights Policy as an individual policy to address

human rights issues.

However, if a violation of compliance due to discrimination or harassment was occurred, social trust may be lost
and it may have an adverse effect on the Group's operating results and financial condition.
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Results of Operations

1. Overview
The Group has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") for preparing its consolidated financial
statements in the annual report since the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. In addition, the following items are
reported based on the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.

(1) Results of operations
1) Revenue and profit
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, revenue increased by ¥743.4 billion or 11.6%, year over year, to
¥7.,144.7 billion due to strong vehicle sales mainly in Japan and North America, depreciation of the yen and
sales expansion mainly in focus field such as electrification and advanced safety.

Operating profit decreased by ¥45.5 billion or 10.7%, year over year, to ¥380.6 billion due to incurred quality
costs, in spite of production volume increase, exchange gain and efforts of cost reduction. Profit before income
taxes decreased by ¥20.6 billion or 4.5%, year over year, to ¥436.2 billion. Profit attributable to owners of the
parent company decreased by ¥1.8 billion or 0.6% to ¥312.8 billion.

Revenue and profit or loss by segment
By geographical segment, revenue increased in all regions, year over year, due to strong vehicle sales for
easing semiconductor shortages mainly in Japan and North America. Operating profit increased in each region
due to production volume increase and improvement of profitability, except in Japan where quality costs were
incurred.

Revenue in Japan increased by ¥460.5 billion, or 12.4%, year over year, to ¥4,166.4 billion due to strong
vehicle sales and depreciation of yen. Operating profit decreased by ¥130.4 billion, or 60.5%, year over year,
to ¥85.2 billion due to incurred quality costs despite production volume increase and efforts of cost reduction.
Assets totaled ¥6,092.4 billion, which is ¥1,376.8 billion more than at the previous fiscal year-end, mainly due
to increases in other financial assets and assets held for sale.

Revenue in North America increased by ¥263.0 billion, or 17.5%, year over year, to ¥1,767.0 billion due to
sales expansion mainly in focus field such as electrification and safety. Operating profit increased by ¥36.6
billion, or 204.4%, year over year, to ¥54.6 billion due to production volume increase and efforts of cost
reduction. Assets totaled ¥998.8 billion, which is ¥168.1 billion more than at the previous fiscal year-end,
mainly due to increases in other financial assets and property, plant and equipment.

Revenue in Europe increased by ¥95.8 billion, or 14.0%, year over year, to ¥781.3 billion due to strong vehicle
sales. Operating profit increased by ¥13.5 billion, or 77.6%, year over year, to ¥31.0 billion due to production
volume increase and efforts of cost reduction. Assets totaled ¥540.9 billion, which is ¥51.7 billion more than at
the previous fiscal year-end, mainly due to increases in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Revenue in Asia increased by ¥53.4 billion, or 2.8%, year over year, to ¥1,985.1 billion. Operating profit
increased by ¥26.2 billion, or 16.6%, year over year, to ¥184.5 billion due to efforts of cost reduction. Assets
totaled ¥1,806.1 billion, which is ¥168.1 billion more than at the previous fiscal year-end, mainly due to
increases in cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue in other regions increased by ¥13.9 billion, or 13.8%, year over year, to ¥115.2 billion. Operating
profit increased by ¥5.5 billion, or 28.7%, year over year, to ¥24.8 billion. Assets totaled ¥89.0 billion, which is
¥8.7 billion more than at the previous fiscal year-end, mainly due to increases in trade and other receivables
and property, plant and equipment.
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2) Financial position
Total assets as of March 31, 2024, increased by ¥1,684.7 billion, to ¥9,093.4 billion mainly due to an increase in
other financial assets.
The total of current and non-current liabilities increased by ¥517.9 billion, to ¥3,346.9 billion mainly due to an
increase in deferred tax liabilities.
Equity increased by ¥1,166.8 billion, to ¥5,746.5 billion mainly due to an increase in mark-to-market of
investment securities.

3) Cash flows
In terms of cash flows for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, operating activities provided net cash of
¥961.8 billion, investing activities used net cash of ¥459.5 billion, and financing activities used net cash of
¥496.7 billion. As a result, cash and cash equivalents increased by ¥55.5 billion, to ¥789.4 billion.

Net cash provided by operating activities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 increased by ¥359.1
billion from ¥602.7 billion in the previous fiscal year to ¥961.8 billion. This increase was mainly due to the ¥20.6
billion decrease in profit before income taxes and ¥215.2 billion increase in trade receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities increased by ¥95.8 billion from ¥363.7 billion in the previous fiscal year to
¥459.5 billion. This increase was mainly due to an investment in Silicon Carbide LLC, a SiC wafer
manufacturing company that is a subsidiary of Coherent Corp.

Net cash used in financing activities increased by ¥96.6 billion from ¥400.1 billion in the previous fiscal year to
¥496.7 billion. This increase mainly reflected the ¥100.0 billion increase in purchase of treasury stock.

Purchases of property, plant and equipment increased by 8.6% from ¥360.6 billion in the previous fiscal year to

¥391.6 billion. This increase was due to the promotion of investments while simultaneously strengthening
investments in focused areas and disciplined business operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
[As of March 31, 2024]
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
Note As of March 31, As of March 31,
2023 2024
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,7 733,850 789,390
Trade and other receivables 6,8 1,263,768 1,281,279
Inventories 9 1,119,780 1,172,257
Other financial assets 10 33,716 48,398
Other current assets 126,472 156,477
Subtotal 3,277,586 3,447,801
Assets held for sale 12 = 417,578
Total current assets 3,277,586 3,865,379
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6,11 1,955,240 2,043,600
Right-of-use assets 13 43,642 46,347
Intangible assets 6,14 170,212 199,761
Other financial assets 10 1,699,202 2,624,839
Investments accounted for using the equity method 34 110,173 124,430
Retirement benefit assets 19 78,212 105,937
Deferred tax assets 15 42 967 56,057
Other non-current assets 31,428 27,020
Total non-current assets 4,131,076 5,227,991
Total assets 7,408,662 9,093,370
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(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
Note As of March 31, As of March 31,
2023 2024
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Bonds and borrowings 16 303,509 332,516
Trade and other payables 17 1,219,317 1,232,463
Other financial liabilities 30 54,641 47,672
Income tax payables 42,630 61,768
Provisions 18 106,524 295,239
Other current liabilities 70,163 83,972
Subtotal 1,796,784 2,053,630
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 12 = 111,343
Total current liabilities 1,796,784 2,164,973
Non-current liabilities
Bonds and borrowings 16 585,765 518,205
Other financial liabilities 30 30,929 29,115
Retirement benefit liabilities 19 249,266 238,201
Provisions 18 1,643 1,716
Deferred tax liabilities 6,15 151,507 382,752
Other non-current liabilities 13,057 11,903
Total non-current liabilities 1,032,167 1,181,892
Total liabilities 2,828,951 3,346,865
Equity
Capital stock 20 187,457 187,457
Capital surplus 20 273,664 273,481
Treasury stock 20 (252,270) (452,140)
Other components of equity 20 955,829 1,815,558
Other comprehensive income associated with assets held for sale 12 = 258,936
Retained earnings 20 3,212,248 3,451,694
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 4,376,928 5,934,986
Non-controlling interests 202,783 211,519
Total equity 4,579,711 5,746,505
Total liabilities and equity 7,408,662 9,093,370
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Consolidated Statement of Income
[For the year ended March 31, 2024]

(Unit: Millions of yen)

2022/4-2023/3 WPLyEILS YLK
Revenue 5,22 6,401,320 7,144,733
Cost of revenue 1%"1114 (5,490,176) (6,054,780)
Gross profit 911,144 1,089,953
Selling, general and administrative expenses 6’1141 ’21‘3' (490,454) (715,164)
Other income 6,12, 23 37,361 49,500
Other expenses 24,33 (31,952) (43,690)
Operating profit 5 426,099 380,599
Finance income 25 51,483 78,711
Finance costs 25 (13,666) (22,246)
Foreign exchange losses (4,115) (17,693)
e e cow| oo
Profit before income taxes 456,870 436,237
Income tax expenses 15 (109,009) (80,664)
Profit for the year 347,861 355,573
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company 314,633 312,791
Non-controlling interests 33,228 42,782
(Unit: Yen)
Earnings per share
Basic 26 104.00 104.97
Diluted 26 = —
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
[For the year ended March 31, 2024]
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Note FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 WPLyEILS YLK

Profit for the year 347,861 355,573

Other comprehensive (loss) income

ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI | 27, 29 (102,637) 956,433

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans 19, 27 (14,092) 17,477

Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for 27 7 55
using the equity method

Total (116,722) 973,965
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 27 114,556 220,172

Cash flow hedges 27 (1,704) 342
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for

using the equity method 2l 4,38 L
Total 117,610 228,102
Total other comprehensive income 888 1,202,067
Comprehensive income for the year 348,749 1,557,640
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company 309,087 1,504,137
Non-controlling interests 39,662 53,503
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
[For the year ended March 31, 2024]
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other components of equity
Net fair value Exchange
Note | Capital | Capital | Treasury | gain (loss) Betcanie; differenc:ges
stock surplus stock on equity ments of on
; defined -
instruments translating
: benefit :
designated as| foreign

FVTOCI pension plans operations

As of April 1, 2022 187,457 | 273,803 ((152,346) 788,476 —| 187,086

Profit for the year — - — — — —
Other comprehensive (loss) income - - — (102,304) (14,726)| 113,188

Comprehensive (loss) income for _ _ _ (102,304) (14,726)| 113,188
the year

Acquisition of treasury stock 20 — —1(100,012) — - —
Disposal of treasury stock 20 — 18 88 — - —

Dividends 21 = = = = = =
Changes in the ownership interest
in subsidiaries without a loss of — (157) = — - —
control
Transfer to retained earnings — - — (26,134) 14,726 —

Transfer to other comprehensive
income associated with assets held | 12 — — - — - —

for sale

Other - - - — - -
Total transactions with the owners — (139)] (99,924) (26,134) 14,726 —
As of March 31, 2023 187,457 | 273,664 | (252,270) 660,038 —| 300,274
As of April 1, 2023 187,457 | 273,664 ((252,270) 660,038 —| 300,274

Profit for the year - - = — = =

Other comprehensive income - - - 954,695 18,329| 217,980

Comprehensive income for the year - - - 954,695 18,329| 217,980

Acquisition of treasury stock 20 - — | (200,024) — = o

Disposal of treasury stock 20 - 44 154 — = e

Dividends 21 = = = = = ==

Changes in the ownership interest

in subsidiaries without a loss of - (227) = — = e

control

Transfer to retained earnings - - - (54,352) (18,329) -

Transfer to other comprehensive

(loss) income associated with 12 — — = (258,936) — =3

assets held for sale

Other - = = = - =
Total transactions with the owners - (183) ] (199,870) (313,288) (18,329) =
As of March 31, 2024 187,457 | 273,481 (452,140) 1,301,445 —| 518,254
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(Unit: Millions of yen)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other components|  QOther
of equity compreh- Non-
Note ensive : controlling Jolj?t;(
Cash income Retal_ned Total | interests q
associated | earnings
flow Total | with assets
hedges held for
sale

As of April 1, 2022 (2,779) 972,783 — 3,017,660 (4,299,357 190,169 (4,489,526

Profit for the year — = — | 314,633| 314,633 33,228 347,861

Other comprehensive (loss) income (1,704)| (5,5486) = —| (5,546) 6,434 888

51‘;'“;2;“""”5"'9 (oss) incame (1,704)| (5,546) — | 314,633| 300,087| 39,662| 348749

Acquisition of treasury stock 20 — — - —1(100,012) —1(100,012)

Disposal of treasury stock 20 — = = = 108 = 106

Dividends 21 = — — [(132,777)((132,777)| (25,890)((158,667)

Changes in the ownership interest

in subsidiaries without a loss of — — - = (157) (420) (577)

control

Transfer to retained earnings —| (11,408) = 11,408 — = =

Transfer to other comprehensive

income associated with assets held| 12 = = = — = = =

for sale

Other - - - 1,324 1,324 (738) 586
Total transactions with the owners —| (11,408) — 1(120,045)((231,516)| (27,048)(258,564)
As of March 31, 2023 (4,483) 955,829 — 13,212,248 4,376,928 202,783(4,579,711
As of April 1, 2023 (4,483)( 955,829 — 13,212,248 4,376,928 | 202,783 14,579,711

Profit for the year - - — | 312,791 312,791| 42,782| 355,573

Other comprehensive income 34211,191,346 - - 1,191,346 10,721]1,202,067

?;;‘:pmhe”s""e income for the 342[1,101,346 — | 312,791[1,504,137| 53,503 1,557,640

Acquisition of treasury stock 20 - - - — ((200,024) —1(200,024)

Disposal of treasury stock 20 - = - = 198 - 198

Dividends 21 - = — |(146,029)|(146,029)| (42,559)|(188,588)

Changes in the ownership interest

in subsidiaries without a loss of - - - - (227)| (2,251)| (2,478)

control

Transfer to retained earnings — | (72,681) = 72,681 = — —

Transfer to other comprehensive

(loss) income associated with 12 — |(258,936) 258,936 = — — —

assets held for sale

Other = — - 3 3 43 46
Total transactions with the owners —1(331,617) 258,936 | (73,345)|(346,079)| (44,767)((390,846)
As of March 31, 2024 (4,141) 1,815,558 258,936 (3,451,694 (5,534,986 211,519(5,746,505

33




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
[For the year ended March 31, 2024]

(Unit: Millions of yen)
2022/4-2023/3 WPkl ErlipL k]

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes 456,870 436,237
Depreciation 364,635 374,269
Impairment losses 1,240 =
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities (10,314) (15,590)
Decrease in retirement benefit assets 3,920 7,241
Interest and dividend income (50,202) (76,449)
Interest expenses 9,346 14,279
Foreign exchange gains (13,040) (9,416)
Share of_the loss (profit) of associates and joint ventures accounted for using 2931 (16,866)

the equity method

Losses on sales or disposal of property, plant and equipment 904 9,294
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables (75,342) 139,924
(Increase) decrease in inventories (46,338) 19,670
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 14,141 (73,960)
(Decrease) increase in provisions (38,577) 186,960
Other 41,584 64,035
Subtotal 661,758 1,059,628
Interest received 15,078 31,226
Dividends received 41,800 48,301
Interest paid (9,075) (14,528)
Income taxes paid (106,841) (162,801)
Net cash provided by operating activities 602,720 961,826

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in time deposits (15,007) (8,816)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (360,576) (391,641)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 18,431 17,738
Purchases of intangible assets (53,738) (54,764)
Purchases of equity instruments (18,875) (105,827)
Purchases of debt instruments (690) (277)
Proceeds from sales of equity instruments 46,145 85,587
Proceeds from sales and redemption of debt instruments 503 605
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries and other businesses 6 = (11,110)
Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries or other businesses 12 17,980 5,096
Other 2,151 3,922
Net cash used in investing activities (363,676) (459,487)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings 31 (35,771) 11,300
Proceeds from borrowings 31 69,299 84,375
Repayments of long-term borrowings 31 (82,522) (111,619)
Repayments of lease liabilities 31 (30,100) (37,954)
Redemption of bonds 31 (70,000) (50,000)
Dividends paid 21 (132,777) (146,029)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (25,890) (41,433)
Purchase of treasury stock (100,012) (200,024)
Other 31 7,674 (5,275)
Net cash used in financing activities (400,099) (496,659)
Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents 27,097 49,860
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (133,958) 55,540
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 867,808 733,850
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7 733,850 789,390
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended March 31, 2024

1. Reporting entity
The Company is a business corporation located in Japan. The Company and its subsidiaries develop, manufacture
and sell mainly automotive parts in each segment of Japan, North America, Europe, Asia, and Others. The automotive
parts are related to Thermal Systems, Powertrain Systems, Mobility Electronics, Electrification Systems, and
Advanced Devices, as well as Non-automotive products. Please refer to the Appendix for a list of subsidiaries.

2. Basis of preparation
(1) Compliance with IFRS

The Group meets all of the requirements for a "Specified Company for the designated IFRS" to prepare its
consolidated financial statements by applying the designated IFRS as stipulated under Article 1-2 of the
"Ordinance on Terminology, Forms, and Preparation Methods of Consolidated Financial Statements”
(Ministry of Finance of Japan Regulation No. 28, 1976, hereafter "the Regulation"). Hence, in accordance with
Article 93 of the Regulation, the Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved on June 26,
2024 by Shinnosuke Hayashi, the President of the Company.

(2) Basis of measurement
Except for the financial instruments that are measured at fair value and application of hyperinflation accounting in
consolidated subsidiaries stated in Note 3 "Material accounting policies," the Group's consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

(3) Functional currency and presentation currency
The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Japanese yen, which is the functional currency of
the Company. The units are in millions of yen, and figures less than one million yen are rounded to the nearest
million yen.

(4) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumption
In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS, management established judgement,
estimates, and assumptions that have an effect on the application of accounting policies, as well as the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses.

The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis because
actual results may differ from these estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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1) Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that managements have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant impact on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:
- Scope of consolidation: Note 3 "Material accounting policies (1) Basis of consolidation”
- Revenue: Note 3 "Material accounting policies (16) Revenue" and Note 22 "Revenue"

2) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
period that may have significant risks that will cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows.

i) Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Regarding non-financial assets such as property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets, if there is an event or change in circumstances indicating that the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit may exceed the recoverable amount, the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated, assuming there is an indication of possible impairment. In estimating the
recoverable amount, assumptions such as the remaining useful life of the asset, projections of future cash

flow, and discount rates are used.

The Group believes that the judgments concerning the identification of impairment indicators and the
recognition of impairment loss, as well as the estimates of recoverable amounts, are reasonable. However, as
these estimates include uncertainties, if unpredictable changes to assumptions, etc., lead to changes in
estimates related to assessing non-financial assets, this may result in additional impairment losses in the
future.

For more information, please refer to Note 11 "Property, plant and equipment (4) Impairment losses," Note 13
"Right-of-use assets (2) Impairment losses," Note 14 "Intangible assets (2) Impairment losses and (4)
Impairment test for goodwill."

ii) Recoverability of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits, and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is not probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit against which all or part of the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

The Group believes that the estimates related to assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets are
reasonable. However, as these estimates include uncertainties, if unpredictable changes to assumptions,
etc., lead to changes in estimates related to assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, this may result
in an additional reduction of deferred tax assets in the future.

Please refer to Note 15 "Income taxes (2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities" for more information on the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which deferred tax assets are not recognized.

iii) Reserve for warranty and provision for loss on antitrust issues
a) Reserve for warranty
Warranty expenses include repair expenses for repair requests, which are primarily from end users, as well
as repair expenses for target vehicles, that are based on defect handling (including recalls) determined by
the automobile manufacturers and other customers.
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Of the above, the reserve for warranty related to the defect handling is calculated based on a reasonably
expected amount that would be paid by the Group, in the event that automobile manufacturers or other

customers handled the repairs for products manufactured by the Group in the past. The amount is
calculated by multiplying the following; a) the number of target vehicles; b) the repair expenses per unit; c)
the defect handling incidence rate; and d) the expected burden ratio with customers such as automobile
manufacturers. These assumptions involve a high degree of uncertainties because they include an estimate
of the man-hours required for repairs, which depends on the cause of product defects as well as the results
of negotiations with customers such as automobile manufactures.

The Group believes that the estimates of the assumptions related to the calculation of warranty expenses
are reasonable. However, these estimates include uncertainties, and if the estimates differ from the actual
warranty expenses as a result of unpredictable changes made to assumptions, etc., it may be necessary to
recognize additional reserve for warranty or make reversal of it.

(Changes in accounting estimates)

Provision for warranty reserve was recorded as an expense related to defects in some of the products
produced by the consolidated companies in the past. However, the estimate was changed for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2024 based on subsequent events. As a result of this change, provisions for current

liabilities, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by ¥179.0 billion, respectively.

b) Provision for loss on antitrust issues
Provision for loss on antitrust issues is recognized at an estimated amount of potential future losses to
prepare for litigation settlements, etc., which the Company has accepted with regard to allegations of
antitrust law infractions for past transactions of specific automotive parts.

Litigation settlements mainly include; a) surcharges that are ordered to be paid as a result of investigations
by national governments and competition authorities; b) litigation settiements to be paid as a result of
settlement negotiations with the plaintiffs in civil cases; and c) litigation settlements to be paid as a result of
individual settlement negotiations with automobile manufacturers. The Group has established an internal
system to prevent violations of the Antitrust Law, and publicly announced a safety declaration regarding the
Antitrust Law in March 2012. As such, the Group believes that the risk of antitrust violations has been
reduced. However, the Group estimates the amount of litigation settlements that are expected to occur in
the future, and reviews the provisions amount that have already been recorded, in a timely manner. For the
estimates and the reviews, the Group considers the status of investigations by the national governments
and competition authorities related to transactions before March 2012, the progress of settlement

negotiations, the settlement of past settlement sought cases, and consultation with the attorneys in charge.

The Group believes that it reasonably estimates surcharges and settlements, as well as reviews these
estimates. However, these estimates and estimate revisions include uncertainties, which depend on the
intentions of the authorities and counterparties, and it may be necessary to make additional provisions for

loss on antitrust issues or reversal as a result of unpredictable changes made to assumptions, etc.

For the amount of these provisions, see Note 18 "Provisions."
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iv) Measurement of defined benefit obligation
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined with actuarial calculations using assumptions
such as discount rate, rate of salary increase, rate of employee turnover and mortality rate. The discount rate
is a particularly significant assumption. The discount rates are equivalent to the market yields of AA credit-
rated corporate bonds at the end of each reporting period that have maturity terms approximating those of the
Group's obligations.

The Group believes that the estimates of the assumptions related to the calculation of defined benefit
obligation are reasonable. However, as these estimates include uncertainties, difference in assumptions from
the actual results or changes made to the assumptions may have an impact on the evaluation of the Group's
defined benefit obligation.

The carrying amount of the defined benefit obligation, and the expected impact on defined benefit obligation
due to fluctuations in the discount rate are found in Note 19 "Post-employment benefits (1) Defined benefit
plans."

v) Measurement of fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of certain assets and liabilities have been determined using market information such as quoted
market prices, and valuation methodologies such as the market approach, income approach and cost
approach. If available, quoted prices on active markets, or observable prices, are used to measure fair value.
If such information is not available, unobservable inputs that reflect the Group's judgment on assumptions,
which market participants would use when pricing the assets or liabilities, are used. The Group develops
unobservable inputs using the best information available in the circumstances, which might include the

Group's own data.

The Group believes that assessments of fair value of financial instruments are reasonable. However, as these
assessments include uncertainties, this could result in changes in fair value measurement if there are changes

in estimates for financial instruments, which may arise from unpredictable changes made to assumptions, etc.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, details of material unobservable inputs and valuation
methodologies for the financial instruments classified as Level 3 are found in Note 29 "Financial instruments

(4) Fair value of financial instruments."

(5) Changes in accounting policies
For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group has adopted the amendments of IAS 12 "Income Taxes."

(Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction)

Due to the application of IAS 12 "Income Taxes" (amended in May 2021), the accounting treatment was clarified
for the initial recognition, etc. concerning transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences at the time of the transaction, and the deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets regarding the
taxable and deductible temporary differences are each recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position. This amendment is an immaterial impact on the consolidated financial statement.
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(International Tax Reform Pillar Two Model Rules)

Due to the application of IAS 12, "Income Taxes" (amended in May 2023), the Group has applied a temporary
exception to the requirement to recognize and disclose deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities pertaining to
income taxes arising from the tax system related to the Pillar Two model rules announced by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD). As this standard was applied retrospectively, deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities pertaining to income taxes arising from the tax system related to the Pillar Two

model rules have not been recognized or disclosed.

In the reforms to the Japanese tax system made in 2023, a corporate tax complying with the global minimum tax
was newly created, with the tax reform act ("Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act, etc,"Act No.3 of 2023))
(hereinafter "Revised Corporation Tax ACT") enacted on March 28, 2023 that includes the relevant regulations for
the global minimum tax. Within the global minimum tax rules in the Revised Corporation Tax Act, an income
inclusion rule ("lIR") has been introduced. Applicable from the business year starting on or after April 1, 2024, an
additional tax will be imposed on parent companies located in Japan up to the minimum tax rate (15%) of the taxes

borne by the subsidiaries, etc. of those parent companies located in Japan.
In the Group, the tax burden may be lower than the minimum tax rate (15%) in subsidiaries located in the United

Arab Emirates and other countries, but this taxation has an immaterial impact on the consolidated financial

statement.

39



3. Material accounting policies
(1) Basis of consolidation
1) Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company and whose financial statements are included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group from the date of acquisition of the control to the date of loss of
the control by the Group. In cases where the accounting policies applied by subsidiaries are different from those
applied by the Group, adjustments are made to the subsidiary's financial statements, if necessary. All inter-
group balances, transactions, and unrealized gains have been eliminated on consolidation. Comprehensive
income is attributed to owners of the parent company and non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of subsidiaries whose fiscal year-end is

different from that of the parent company. The unification of the fiscal year-end is impracticable as required by
the local legal systems under which they are governed.

In cases where the financial statements of subsidiaries are used for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which have different fiscal year-ends, necessary adjustments are made for the effects of significant
transactions or events occurring between the fiscal year-end of the subsidiaries and that of the Company.

2) Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity which the Group does not control but has significant influence over its financial and
operating policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method from the date on which
the Group has significant influence until the date on which it ceases to have significant influence.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
parties sharing control. Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

The accounting policies for associates and joint ventures are adjusted as required in order to comply with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

The consolidated financial statements include investments in associates and joint ventures with different fiscal
year-ends from that of the Company as it is impracticable to unify the fiscal year-ends primarily due to the
involvement of other shareholders. Necessary adjustments are made for the effects of significant transactions or
events occurring between the fiscal year-ends of the associates and joint ventures and that of the Company.

Under the equity method, investments in an associate or a joint venture are initially recognized at acquisition
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Group's share of the net assets of the
associate or the joint venture after the date of acquisition. The Group's share of the net income of the associates
or the joint ventures is recognized in the Group's profit or loss. Also, the Group's share of the other
comprehensive income of the associates or the joint ventures is recognized in the Group's other comprehensive
income. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its investments
in the associate or the joint venture, which include any long-term investments that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture, the Group discontinues recognizing its share of
further losses unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or the joint venture. All significant intercompany profits are eliminated in proportion to interests in
the associate and the joint venture.

Any excess of consideration of acquisition over interests in the net fair value of assets, liabilities, and contingent
liabilities of associated companies and joint ventures has been recognized as the amount corresponding to
goodwill, and has been included in the carrying amount of investments without any amortization.
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3) Joint operations
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have

rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the contractual arrangement. For investments in
joint operations, only the Group's share of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses arising from its operating
activities are recognized. All significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in proportion to
its interests.

(2) Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. Consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control over an acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are recognized as expenses.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

The identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured at fair values at the acquisition date,

except that:

- Deferred tax assets (or liabilities) and liabilities (or assets) related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12, "Income Taxes," and IAS 19, "Employee Benefits,"
respectively;

- Assets or disposal groups that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, "Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations," are recognized and measured in accordance with the standard;
and

- Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based remuneration of the acquiree or share-based
remuneration of the Company entered into to replace such arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2, "Share-based Payment."

Any excess of the consideration of acquisition over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities is recognized
as goodwill in the consolidated statement of financial position. If the consideration of acquisition is lower than the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities, the difference is immediately recognized as a gain in the
consolidated statement of income. The additional acquisition of non-controlling interests after obtaining control is

accounted for as an equity transaction without recognition of goodwill.

Goodwill has been measured as the initially recognized value at the date of the business combination less
accumulated impairment losses and included in "Intangible assets" in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Goodwill is not amortized, but instead tested for impairment annually or whenever there is any indication
of impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are recognized in the consolidated statement of income and no

subsequent reversal is made.

If the initial accounting of a business combination has not been completed by the end of the reporting period in
which the business combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for uncompleted accounting items.
The Group will revise the provisional amounts during the measurement period (not exceeding one year) or
recognize additional assets or liabilities in order to reflect new information obtained regarding the facts and
circumstances that existed as of the date of acquisition and would have affected the amounts recognized on the

date of acquisition, if such amounts have been ascertained.
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(3) Foreign currency translation
1) Translation of foreign currency transactions
Each company in the Group specifies its own functional currency, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, and measures transactions based on the functional currency. The
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions, or an approximation of the rate.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into each company's functional currency at
the current exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at the acquisition cost are not retranslated. Other items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at the fair value are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined.

Differences arising from the translation and settlement are recognized in profit or loss during the period, as
presented in "Foreign exchange gains (losses)" in the consolidated statement of income.

2) Translation of foreign operations

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Japanese yen, which is the presentation
currency of the Company. In order to present the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange prevailing at the fiscal year-end,
while revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Japanese yen at the average exchange
rates for the period, except for foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies. The translation differences are
recognized as "Exchange differences on franslating foreign operations" in the other comprehensive income and
its cumulative amount is classified as "Other components of equity." In the event of a loss of control due to the
disposal of foreign operations, the relevant cumulative amount of translation differences is recognized in profit or
loss during the period.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments resulting from the acquisition of foreign operations are retranslated as
assets and liabilities of such foreign operations as at the end of the reporting period, and exchange differences
are recognized in "Other components of equity."

3) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
The Group has applied hyperinflationary accounting adjustments to subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Argentine Pesos and Turkish Lira as required by IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies."
When a subsidiary’s functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy, adjustments are made
to its separate financial statements to reflect current price levels, and income, expenses and cash flow of the
subsidiary are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange prevailing at the fiscal year-end.

(4) Financial instruments
1) Financial assets
i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified into financial assets measured at amortized cost and financial assets measured
at fair value based on their nature and holding purposes. The Group determines the classification at initial
recognition. The sale or purchase of financial assets that occurred in the normal course of business are
recognized or derecognized on the transaction date.
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a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost if both of the following

conditions are met:
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial assets measured at amortized cost are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value
If the financial assets do not meet the above conditions, they are classified as financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments are measured at fair value. By its irrevocable designation, the financial assets held for
trading are measured through profit or loss, meanwhile the other assets are measured through other
comprehensive income. The designation has been applied continuously.

Financial assets other than equity instruments that do not meet the conditions in relation to the
measurement of amortized cost are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss when they occur. Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

ii) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial assets are measured based on the following classifications:

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are measured using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
financial assets. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss, and included in "Finance income" in the
consolidated statement of income. In cases where a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
derecognized, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received or receivable is
recognized in profit or loss.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value
Changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

However, gains or losses occurring from the disposal or remeasurement of fair value of the equity
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated within "Other components of equity," and are not recognized in
profit or loss. The amount is transferred to retained earnings when the equity instruments are derecognized.
Dividends for equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss for the period when the right to receive
dividends is established and included in "Finance income" in the consolidated statement of income. Net
gains or losses arising from equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
as "Finance income" or "Finance costs" in the consolidated statement of income (Note 29 "Financial
instruments"). The interest income from the debt instruments is also included in profit or loss above.
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iii) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are assessed at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk on financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition, or for credit-impaired, the lifetime expected credit losses
are recognized as allowance for doubtful accounts. If there has been no significant increase in credit risk, the
12-month expected credit losses are recognized as allowance for doubtful accounts. The expected credit
losses are measured based on the discounted present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows to be received in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received.

With regard to trade receivables, the lifetime expected credit losses are recognized as allowance for doubtful
accounts since initial recognition. Additional allowance for doubtful accounts relating to financial assets or
reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts when reducing the allowance for doubtful accounts is recognized
in the consolidated statement of income.

iv) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when the Group transfers the contractual right to receive cash flows from financial assets in transactions in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor holds substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes the retained interest on the assets and the
relevant liabilities that might possibly be paid in association therewith.

2) Financial liabilities
i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities measured at amortized cost or financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition, and
all financial liabilities are measured at fair value at initial recognition. However, financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost are measured at fair value after deducting transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of financial liabilities.

ii) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured based on the following classifications:

a) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Financial liabilities held neither for trading nor measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. The interest cost is included in "Finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of income. Amortization under the effective interest method and gains or losses on

derecognition are recognized as "Finance income" or "Finance costs" in the consolidated statement of
income.

b) Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss at
initial recognition are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when they are extinguished, for example, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired.

3) Derivatives and hedge accounting
The Group utilizes derivatives, including currency swaps, interest rate swaps, and foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge foreign exchange and interest rate risks. These derivatives are initially measured at fair value
when the contract is entered into, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting period.

The Group has derivatives that are held for hedging purposes but that do not qualify for hedge accounting. The
fluctuation of the fair value of these derivatives is recognized in profit or loss immediately.
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At the inception of the hedge, the Group formally designates and documents the hedging relationship between
the hedging instruments and the hedged items by following the objectives of risk management and the
strategies for undertaking the hedge. In addition, these hedges are expected to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows. They are assessed on a quarterly basis to determine whether they have been highly
effective throughout the reporting periods for which the hedges were designated. To qualify as a cash flow
hedge of a forecast transaction, the transaction must be highly probable.

Cash flow hedge

The Group adopts only cash flow hedges as part of its hedge accounting.

The effective portion of gains or losses on hedging instruments is recognized as other comprehensive income
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of income.

The amounts of hedging instruments recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss when the transactions of the hedged items affect profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedge no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, or
when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when the designation is revoked.

When hedge accounting is discontinued, the balances of other comprehensive income related to cash flow
hedges remain until the forecast transaction affects profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the balance is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

4) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets are offset against financial liabilities and the net amounts are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize assets and settle liabilities
simultaneously.

(5) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of change in value and due within three
months from the date of acquisition.

(6) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of acquisition cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories includes
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition and the cost is determined mainly using the periodic average method. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and estimated
applicable variable selling expenses.
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(7) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment is measured by using the "Cost model" and is stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Except for assets that are not subject to depreciation such as land and construction in progress, property, plant,
and equipment is mainly depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, as follows.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

- Buildings and structures: 6 to 50 years

- Machinery and vehicles: 3 to 10 years

- Other: 2 to 10 years

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

(8) Investment property
Investment property is measured by using the "Cost model," in which the depreciation method and useful lives are
used for the property, plant and equipment for the Group.

(9) Intangible assets
1) Separately acquired intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. They are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives.

The estimated useful lives and amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, and the effects of any changes in estimates are accounted prospectively.

Separately acquired intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but tested for impairment,
and are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated impairment losses. The impairment tests are performed
individually or by cash-generating unit annually or whenever there is any indication of impairment.

2) Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditures related to research activities are recognized as expenses as incurred.
The cost arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) shall be recognized
as an asset if, and only if, the Group can demonstrate all of the following:
i) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
ii) its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
iii) its ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
iv) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
v) the availability of adequate technical, financial, and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and
vi) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Initial recognition of internally generated intangible assets comprises the total expenditure incurred from the
date when all the preceding conditions have been satisfied to the date when the developments are finished.
Development costs are recognized as an expense as incurred if the internally generated intangible assets are
not recognized.
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After initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are measured at cost, net of accumulated
amortization and impairment losses.

3) Intangible assets acquired in business combinations

Intangible assets acquired in business combinations are initially recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequently, intangible assets acquired in business combinations are measured at cost less any accumulated
amortization and impairment losses.

4) Amortization of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Software: 3 to 5 years

- Development costs: 3 years

- Customer-related assets: 3 to 25 years

- Technology-based assets: 10 to 19 years

5) Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognized.

(10) Leases
1) As lessee

With regard to all leases excluding short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value,

at the commencement date, the Group recognizes its right to use the underlying leased assets during the lease
period as right-of-use assets, and its obligation to make lease payments to the lessor as lease liabilities.

For the initial measurement of right-of-use assets, it is measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liabilities adjusted by prepaid lease payments, etc. After the initial measurement, a "cost model" is applied
for subsequent measurement, and the carrying amount is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment loss. The right of use assets are depreciated from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life or the end of the lease term based on a straight-line method, unless it is
reasonably certain that ownership will be acquired at the end of the lease term.

For the initial measurement of lease liabilities, it is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, and the payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate. After the initial measurement, the lease liabilities are measured by reflecting interest on the
lease liabilities and the lease payments made for subsequent measurement.

The lease term is determined as the non-cancellable period of leases, together with both periods covered by an
option to extend the leases if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an
option to terminate the leases if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

For short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognized
and lease payments are recognized as expenses based on a straight-line method over the lease term.

2) As lessor

If substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset are transferred, the lease
is classified as a finance lease, while in the other cases the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Finance lease receivables are measured at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.
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(11) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(12) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses, for each fiscal year, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or in cases where the impairment test is required to be performed each year, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. In cases where the recoverable amount cannot be estimated for
each asset, it is estimated by the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. The grouping of assets in
applying impairment accounting is determined by business group, which is the unit used in management
accounting to understand profits and losses on an ongoing basis. In addition, assets are grouped into a rented

property group and an idle property group, with each property as a minimum unit. Meanwhile, the headquarters
and welfare facilities are categorized as corporate assets because they do not generate cash flows independently.

Impairment losses are included in "Other expenses" in the consolidated statement of income. Assessment for
impairment is performed with respect to each asset, cash-generating unit, or group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined at the higher of its fair value less
disposition costs or its value in use. If the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds the
recoverable amount, impairment losses are recognized and the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount. In determining the fair value less disposition costs, the Group uses an appropriate valuation model
supported by available fair value indicators. In determining the value in use, estimated future cash flows are
calculated using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

The Group assesses whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized in prior years for an asset
other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased, such as any changes in assumptions used for the
determination of the recoverable amount. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is estimated. In cases that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit, impairment losses are reversed up to the lower of the estimated recoverable amount or
the carrying amount (net of depreciation) that would have been determined if no impairment losses had been
recognized in prior years.

(13) Assets held for sale
An asset or asset group for which the value is expected to be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use is classified as asset held for sale or disposal group when the following conditions are met:
it is highly probable that the asset or asset group will be sold within one year, the asset or asset group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, and the Group management commits to the sale plan. In such cases,
the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortized and is measured at the lower of its carrying amount or its fair
value less costs to sell.

(14) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has present legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events,
it is probable that outflows of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations, and
reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligations.

Provisions are measured at the present value by the estimated future cash flow that is discounted by a pre-tax rate

that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount due to the
passage of time is recognized as "Finance costs" in the consolidated statement of income.
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Main provisions are recorded as follows;

Reserve for warranty

The reserve for warranty is recognized based on the estimated amount of warranty expenses, considering the
timing of outflows of resources embodying economic benefits based on past experiences of the after-sales service
expenses incurred.

Provision for loss on antitrust issues

Provision for loss on antitrust issues is recognized at an estimated amount of potential future losses to prepare for
payments of litigation settlements, etc., which the Company has accepted with regard to allegations of antitrust law
infractions for part transactions related to specific automotive parts.

(15) Employee benefits
1) Post-employment benefits
i) Defined benefit plans
The Group has defined benefit pension plans and lump-sum benefit plans.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans (refer to ii)
below). The Group's net defined benefit obligations are calculated respectively for each plan by estimating the
future amount of benefits that employees have earned in exchange for their service over the previous years
and the current year. The benefits are discounted to determine the present value. These calculations are
performed annually by qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The fair values of plan assets
are deducted from the result of calculations. If the defined benefit plan has a surplus, the defined benefit
assets is limited to the asset ceiling that is the present value of any future economic benefits available in the
form of reductions in the future contributions to the plan or cash refunds.

The discount rates are equivalent to the market yields of AA credit-rated corporate bonds at the end of each
reporting period that have maturity terms approximating those of the Group's obligations. Increase/decrease in
benefit obligations for employees' past service due to revisions to the plan are recognized in profit or loss. The
Group recognizes the increase/decrease in obligations due to remeasurements of benefit obligations and plan
assets of defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income and then immediately reclassifies them from
other comprehensive income to retained earnings.

ii) Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans in which the employer pays fixed contributions
into separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to make further contributions. The
obligations for contributions to defined contribution plan are recognized as an expense during the period when
the service is rendered.

2) Other long-term employee benefits
Long-term employee benefits, such as long-service employee awards, are recognized as a liability when the
Group has present legal or constructive obligations to pay as a result of past employee service, and when
reliable estimates of the obligation can be made. The Group's long-term employee benefits are calculated by
discounting the estimated future amount of benefits to the present value.

The discount rates are equivalent to the market yields of AA credit-rated corporate bonds at the end of each
reporting period that have maturity terms approximating those of the Group's obligations.
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3) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed during the period
when the service is rendered.

Bonus accrual is recognized as a liability when the Group has present legal or constructive obligations to pay as
a result of past employee service, and when reliable estimates of the obligation can be made.

(16) Revenue
The Group recognizes revenue by applying the following steps:
STEP 1: Identifying the contract with a customer
STEP 2: Identifying the performance obligations in the contract
STEP 3: Determining the transaction price
STEP 4: Allocating the transaction price to each performance obligation in the contract
STEP 5: Recognizing revenue when satisfying a performance obligation

The Group serves automobile manufacturers around the world and supplies a wide range of products, including
Thermal Systems, Powertrain Systems, Mobility Electronics, Electrification Systems, and Advanced Devices. In the
Aftermarket and Non-automotive business, the Group also supplies automotive service parts and accessories to

end-users.

The Group's performance obligation is primarily to deliver a finished product to the customer. In principle, it is
deemed that control of the product is transferred to the customer and the performance obligation is satisfied at the

time of delivery of the finished product to the customer; therefore, revenue is recognized at that point.

Consideration for these performance obligations is generally received within one year after the performance
obligation is satisfied, according to separately determined payment conditions, and does not include any significant
financing components. Revenue is determined at the amount after the deduction of discounts, rebates, and
considerations payable to a customer for transactions of parts provided to suppliers with charge under the
repurchase agreement. In addition, when the transaction prices are not determined at the time of transfer of the
promised products, an estimate is made based on an appropriate method such as using the most likely amount to

determine the amount of variable consideration.

With regard to certain transactions of parts provided to suppliers with charge under the repurchase agreement,
inventories continue to be recognized as a result of deemed financing transactions, and corresponding amounts of

those parts retained by the suppliers are recognized as financial liabilities.

(17) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at fair value when there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will receive
the grants subject to the conditions attached to them. In cases where the government grants are compensation for
expenses, they are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate are recognized. With regard to government grants that are compensation for assets, the
amount of the grants is deducted from the acquisition cost of the assets to measure the carrying amounts of the

assets.
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(18) Income taxes
Income taxes in the consolidated statement of income are presented as the total of current income taxes and
deferred income taxes. The current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except for taxes arising from
items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and those arising from business
combinations.

Current income taxes are measured at the amount that is expected to be paid to or refunded from the taxation
authorities. For the calculation of the tax amount, the Group uses the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income taxes are calculated based on the temporary differences between the tax base for assets and
liabilities and the carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits, and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for

taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for the following temporary differences:

- the initial recognition of goodwill;

- the initial recognition of assets and liabilities resulting from transactions that do not affect accounting profit or

taxable profit, excluding business combinations and transactions that generate equal amounts of future taxable

and deductible temporary differences at the transaction time;

deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint

ventures to the extent that it is not probable that the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable

future will occur or it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be

utilized; or

- taxable temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures to the extent that the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled and that it is not
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future.

.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the fiscal year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is not
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profit against which all or part of the deferred tax assets can be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and recognized only
to the extent that it is probable that the deferred tax assets can be recovered by future taxable profits.

The Group recognizes an asset or liability for the effect of uncertainty in income taxes, which is measured at the
amount of the reasonable estimate for uncertain tax positions when it is possible, based on the Group's
interpretation of tax laws, in which the tax positions will be sustained.

An entity shall offset deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, if and only if the entity has a legally
enforceable right to set off the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be setiled or
recovered.

The Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries in Japan adopt the Japanese group relief system.

(19) Equity
Common stock
The amount of equity instruments issued by the Company is recognized in "Capital stock” and "Capital surplus,"
and direct issue costs (net of tax) are deducted from "Capital surplus.”
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Treasury stock
When the Company acquires treasury stock, the consideration paid, net of direct transaction costs and tax, is

recognized as a deduction from equity. When the Company disposes treasury stock, gains or losses on disposal,
including the exercise of stock options, are recognized in "Capital surplus.”

(20) Fair value measurements
Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recognized at fair value. The estimated fair values of those assets
and liabilities have been determined using market information such as quoted market prices and valuation
methodologies such as the market approach, income approach, and cost approach. There are three levels of
inputs that may be used to measure fair value.

1) Level 1
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets in which transactions take place with sufficient frequency and
transaction volume on an ongoing basis for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

2) Level 2
Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, and
market-corroborated inputs in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable.

3) Level 3
Unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities which reflect the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the assets or liabilities. The Group develops unobservable inputs using the best information
available in the circumstances, which might include the Group's own data.

The fair value is measured at the financial and accounting division by following the Company's measurement
policy and procedure, and the measurement is executed based on the valuation models which reflect nature,
feature, and risks of each financial instrument most appropriately. In addition, transitions of important indexes
which impact on the changes of fair value are examined on an ongoing basis. In cases where the changes in
the fair value of financial instruments are found to be significant as a result of examination, it is reported to the
executive of finance and accounting division to obtain approval.

(21) Levies
The Group recognizes estimated payable amount as a liability when it is required to pay a levy.

(22) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent
company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted by the number
of treasury shares. Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the effects of dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

(23) Dividends

Dividends to the shareholders of the Company are recognized as liabilities in the period in which each year-end
dividend and interim dividend were resolved.
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4. New accounting standards not yet adopted by the Group
New or revised major standards and interpretations that were issued by the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statement but were not yet adopted by the Group as of March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Date of mandatory

adoption Reporting periods of Description of new standards
Standards Title (Fiscal year of application by the SO et mdate
commencement Group
thereafter)

Presentation and Improving comparability and

Disclosure in Fiscal year endin transparency of management
IFRS18 Financial January1,2027 Marchy31, 2028 ? perfofmancgmeasuregand profit

Statements and loss statement

The Group is currently assessing the possible impacts of the application of IFRS 18, "Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements,” and it is not able to estimate reasonably at this moment.
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5. Segment information
(1) Outline of reportable segments

The Group's reportable segments are operating segments, or aggregations of operating segments, which are
components of an entity for which separate financial information is available. Such information is evaluated
regularly by the president of the Company for the purposes of making decisions on how to allocate resources and
assessing performance.

The Group mainly manufactures and sells automotive parts and has directors in charge in Japan, North America,
Europe, and Asia. As independent management units, subsidiaries in each region have developed business
activities, as exemplified by establishment or expansion of manufacturing companies, aiming for optimum
production and supply for orders received through operating activities to regional customers.

The Company is in charge of business activities in Japan. Meanwhile, DENSO INTERNATIONAL AMERICA, INC.
is in charge in the United States of America, Canada, and Mexico as the North America region, DENSO
INTERNATIONAL EUROPE B.V. is in charge in Europe regions (mainly Netherlands, United Kingdom, ltaly, Spain,
Hungary, and Czech, etc.), respectively. In Asia (mainly Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, India, Taiwan, China, and
Korea, etc.), DENSO INTERNATIONAL ASIA CO., LTD. (Thailand), DENSO INTERNATIONAL ASIA PTE. LTD.
(Singapore), and DENSO (CHINA) INVESTMENT CO., LTD. have been cooperating together as a management
unit to strengthen the system that is closely linked to the region for both sides of optimal production and supply
system.

Since the Group is composed of regional segments based on manufacturing and selling systems, the Group
determined that "Japan,” "North America," "Europe," and "Asia" are its reportable segments. The Group has been
manufacturing and selling mainly automotive parts in each reportable segment.

Accounting procedures are the same as those stated in Note 3 "Material accounting policies." Intersegment
transactions are priced with reference to those applicable to transactions with external parties.

Reportable segment profit is measured on the basis of operating profit in the consolidated statement of income.
Finance income, finance costs, foreign exchange gains/losses, share of profit/loss of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method, and income tax expenses are excluded from the reportable segment profit,
since they are not included in the financial information evaluated by the president of the Company.

(2) Revenue, profit/loss, and other material items for each reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2023 (Unit: Millions of yen)

Reportable segment
North : Others |Eliminations|Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total (Note)

Revenue
Customers 2,509,604|1,486,718| 624,329|1,680,872|6,301,523 99,797 —| 6,401,320
Intersegment 1,196,230 17,370 61,223| 250,783|1,525,606| 1,436((1,527,042) -
Total 3,705,834(1,504,088( 685,552(1,931,655]|7,827,129|101,233( (1,527,042)| 6,401,320
Segment profit 215,573 17,921 17,460| 158,286 409,240( 19,260 (2,401) 426,099
Finance income 51,483
Finance costs (13,666)
Foreign exchange losses (4,115)
Share of the loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method (2,931)
Profit before income taxes 456,870

(Note) "Others" is an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of
subsidiaries in South America.
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Other material items

(Unit: Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
North . Others |Eliminations|Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total (Note 1),
Depreciation-and 252,587| 50,708| 25606| 71,636| 400,537| 2,578 - 403,115
amortization
Impairment losses 1,240 e = = 1,240 = - 1,240
Reversal of impairment _ _ _ _ e e 2 s s
losses
Investments accounted for 73,491 5,687 9,800| 21,496| 110,474 - (301) 110,173
using the equity method
HikEas Rt chnen 275,380 53,620 25098 75228 429,326| 4,378 —| 433,704
assets (Note 2)

(Note 1) "Others" is an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of

subsidiaries in South America.
(Note 2) Non-current assets are a total of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Reportable segment
Japan Nc’”.h Eiiiogi Asia Total Others |Eliminations|Consolidated
(Note 2) | America (Note 1)

Revenue
Customers 2,885,718(1,745,443| 709,679|1,689,807 7,030,647 | 114,086 —| 7,144,733
Intersegment 1,280,637 21,599 71,670 295,265(1,669,171| 1,072|(1,670,243) -
Total 4,166,355(1,767,042| 781,349]1,985,07218,699,818|115,158| (1,670,243)| 7,144,733
Segment profit 85,181 54,551 31,002| 184,489 355,223| 24,781 595 380,599
Finance income 78,711
Finance costs (22,246)
Foreign exchange losses (17,693)
Share of the profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 16,866
Profit before income taxes 436,237

(Note 1) "Others" is an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of
subsidiaries in South America.
(Note 2) Provision for warranty reserve of ¥ 202,711 million is included in the segment profit of Japan segment.

Other material items

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Reportable segment

North ; Others |Eliminations|Consolidated
Japan | o ohicq | Europe Asia Total  |(Note 1)

Depreciation and

arorization 251,785 | 55,079 | 28,573 | 74,489 409,926 | 3,010 — 412,936
Impairment losses — — = = = 2 - =
Reversal of impairment

losses - - - - - - - -
Investmants dccountsd for | g gy | a7 2,459 | 23,081 | 124,725 - (295) | 124,430

using the equity method
Increase in non-current | 5g7 g3g | 58543 | 54,123 | 78535 | 479,039 | 6,508 —| 485547

assets (Note 2)

(Note 1) "Others" is an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of

subsidiaries in South America.
(Note 2) Non-current assets are a total of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets.
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(3) Assets for each reportable segment

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Japan 4,715,599 6,092,424
North America 830,651 998,791
Europe 489,271 540,949
Asia 1,637,956 1,806,093
Others (Note 1) 80,312 89,010
Corporate assets (Note 2) (345,127) (433,897)
Consolidated 7,408,662 9,093,370

(Note 1) "Others" is an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of
subsidiaries in South America.
(Note 2) Corporate assets mainly consist of funds which are not attributable to the reportable segments.

(4) Information about products and services
For the year ended March 31, 2023
For disaggregated revenue by type of products and services, see Note 22 "Revenue."

For the year ended March 31, 2024
For disaggregated revenue by type of products and services, see Note 22 "Revenue."

(5) Geographic information

1) Revenue (Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Japan 2,415,938 2,780,082
The United States 1,236,514 1,442,620
China 831,431 799,320
Others 1,917,437 2,122,711
Total 6,401,320 7,144,733

(Note 1) Countries which have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements are individually presented.
(Note 2) Revenue is attributed to geographic areas based on customer locations.

2) Non-current assets

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Japan 1,349,153 1,357,105
China 235,859 248,470
Others 584,082 684,133
Total 2,169,094 2,289,708

(Note 1) Countries which have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements are individually presented.
(Note 2) Non-current assets, a total of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets, are
attributed to geographic areas based on locations of assets.

(6) Information about major customers

The major customer is Toyota Motor Corporation and its subsidiaries. Revenue from the major customer is
recorded in all segments, such as Japan, North America, Europe, and Asia.

Disaggregated revenue by segment is ¥1,982,057 million in Japan, ¥805,740 million in North America, ¥119,449
million in Europe, ¥715,097 million in Asia, and ¥45,109 million in other areas.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
2022/4-2023/3

FY2024
2023/4-2024/3

3,158,814

3,667,452
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6. Business combinations
For the year ended March 31, 2023

There are no applicable items.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Belua Beheer B.V.
The Company acquired Belua Beheer B.V. as a consolidated subsidiary as of August 1, 2023.

(1) Description of business combination
Belua Beheer B.V.,, the parent company of the Certhon Group, including Certhon Build B.V., became the
Company's subsidiary on August 1, 2023 as a reslut of the Company obtaining the shares of Belua Beheer B.V. As
a result, the ratio of voting rights of Belua Beheer B.V. held by the Company rose from 40% (as of July 31, 2023) to
100% (as of August 1, 2023). The Company owns all the voting rights of Belua Beheer B.V.

(2) Reason for the business combination

The Group aims to accelerate the global expansion of its agricultural production business.

(3) Summary of the acquiree
Name Belua Beheer B.V.

Business description = Development and sales of horticultural facility solutions

(4) Acquisition date
August 1, 2023

(9) Consideration transferred and its components
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Amount
Payment by cash 12,427
Fair value of ownership interest in Belua Beheer B.V. already held at the time of acquisition of 8285
control !
Total of the consideration transferred 20,712

A profit of ¥2,858 million is recognized as a result of the remeasurement of the equity interest of Belua Beheer B.V.
previously held at the time of acquisition of control by the Company at the fair value on the acquisition date. This

profit is recorded as "Other income" in the consolidated statement of income.
Acquisition-related costs including advisory fees and others of ¥298 million (for the years ended March 31, 2023

and 2024 were ¥89 million and ¥209 million, respectively) related to the business combination are included in

"Selling, general and administrative expenses."
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(6) Fair values of assets, liabilities and goodwill on the acquisition date

(Unit: Millions of yen)
Initial . . .
provisional fair Adjustment Adjusted fair
(Note 1) value
value
Total of the consideration transferred for the acquired shares (A) 20,712 = 20,712
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,317 = 1,317
Trade and other receivables 2,660 - 2,660
Other current assets 1,102 = 1,102
Property, plant and equipment 1,780 2 1,780
Intangible assets 68 10,201 10,269
Other non-current assets 19 — 19
Total assets 6,946 10,201 17,147
Liabilities
Current liabilities 3,697 = 3,697
Non-current liabilities 1 2,632 2,633
Total liabilities 3,698 2,632 6,330
Equity (B) 3,248 7,569 10,817
Goodwill (Note 2) (A-B) 17,464 (7,569) 9,895

(Note 1) Adjustment to the provisional amount
Consideration transferred is allocated to acquired assets based on the fair value on the acquisition date.
Allocation of the consideration transferred was completed during the three-month period ended March 31, 2024.
In terms of adjustments from the initial provisional amounts, after additional analysis on the fair value of Belua
Beheer B.V.,, intangible assets and deferred tax liabilities increased by ¥10,201 million and ¥2,632 million,
respectively. As a result, goodwill decreased by ¥7,569 million.

(Note 2) Goodwill
Goodwill reflects excess earning power expected from future business development and the synergy between
the Company and the acquiree. No amount of goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(7) Payment for acquisition of control over the subsidiary

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Amount
Payment by cash 12,427
Cash and cash equivalents held by the acquiree at the time of the acquisition 1,317
Total of the consideration acquired 11,110

(8) Revenue and profit of the acquiree
The acquiree's revenue and loss before elimination of inter-company transactions after the acquisition date, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, were ¥5,397

million and ¥524 million, respectively.

The above loss includes depreciation and amortization of intangible assets at the acquisition date.
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(9) Consolidated revenue and profit assuming that the business combination was completed at the beginning of the

fiscal year

The following is pro forma information (unaudited) of consolidated performance of the Group for the fiscal year

ended March 31, 2024, assuming that the business combination of Belua Beheer B.V. was completed and control

was acquired as of April 1, 2023.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Amount
Revenue (pro forma) 7,148,981
Profit for the year (pro forma) 355,617

7. Cash and cash equivalents

The breakdown of "Cash and cash equivalents" at each fiscal year-end is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Cash and deposits 691,333 765,817
Short-term investments 42,517 23,573
Total 733,850 789,390

8. Trade and other receivables

The breakdown of "Trade and other receivables” at each fiscal year-end is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 | As of March 31, 2024
Notes and accounts receivable 1,064,793 1,028,556
Other 203,521 257,304
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,546) (4,581)
Total 1,263,768 1,281,279

(Note) "Trade and other receivables" are classified as financial assets which are measured at amortized cost.

9. Inventories

The breakdown of "Inventories" at each fiscal year-end is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Merchandise and finished products 337,106 301,802
Work in process 438,044 535,152
Raw materials and supplies 344,630 335,303
Total (Note) 1,119,780 1,172,257

(Note) The amounts of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as "Cost of revenue" for the years

ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were ¥21,949 million and ¥22,767 million, respectively.
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10. Other financial assets

(1) The breakdown of "Other financial assets" as of each fiscal year-end is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
As of March 31, 2023

FY2024
As of March 31, 2024

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Bank deposits 23,726 36,520

Debt securities 366 300

Other 26,845 25,531
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Equity securities and other 422 422

Derivative assets (Note) 6,779 18,598
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income and their fair values etc.,

Equity securities and other 1,674,780 2,591,866
Total 1,732,918 2,673,237
Current assets 33,716 48,398
Non-current assets 1,699,202 2,624,839
Total 1,732,918 2,673,237

(Note) Derivative assets, excluding those to which hedge accounting is applied, are classified as financial assets

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Names of major securities held as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

and their fair values as of each fiscal year-end are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

SRR As of J;ﬁiﬁ%i 2023 | As of J;ﬁﬁ%‘h 2024
Toyota Motor Corporation 850,931 1,716,345
TOYOTA INDUSTRIES CORPORATION 217,912 417,578
Renesas Electronics Corporation 293,040 408,970
TOYOTA FUDOSAN CO., LTD. 113,798 177,153
AISIN CORPORATION 47,268 80,673
Silicon Carbide LLC - 76,473
Japan Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing, Inc. 16,999 47,921
JTEKT CORPORATION 18,757 18,364
Infineon Technologies AG 12,184 11,384
Aisan Industry Co., Ltd. 4,945 9,367

Equity securities are held mainly for strengthening business relationships with investees. Therefore, they are
designated as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Dividend income related to financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income that the
Group held through the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were ¥34,423 million and ¥42,773 million,

respectively.
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In order to pursue the efficiency of assets held and to use them effectively, the Group has disposed of
(derecognized) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The fair value at the derecognition, cumulative gains and losses that have been previously recognized in equity as
other comprehensive income, and dividend income are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Fair value 46,120 133,736
Cumulative gains that have been previously recognized in equity as
other comprehensive income — pre-tax (Note) 37,248 78,838
Dividend income 775 2,904

(Note) The cumulative gains recognized in equity as other comprehensive income were transferred to retained earnings
when equity instruments were disposed of. The amounts of transfers to retained earnings were net of tax.
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11. Property, plant and equipment
(1) The breakdown and movement of acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
and carrying amount of "Property, plant and equipment” are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

o Buildings and Machinery Construction
cquisition cost W E_md Land in progress Other Total
equipment (Note 1)

Balance, April 1, 2022 1,135,894 3,557,821 207,823 200,693 855,667 5,957,898
Acquisition 19,444 118,470 162 188,863 39,157 366,096
Disposals (9,765) (135,324) (1,418) (344) (38,060) (184,911)
Foreign exchange differences 22,620 89,417 2,489 6,163 20,729 141,418
Other (Note 2) 28,451 146,808 (701) (178,641) 45,931 41,848
Balance, March 31, 2023 1,196,644 3,777,192 208,355 216,734 923,424 6,322,349
Acquisition 19,970 127,828 - 202,790 41,466 392,054
?ﬁﬂ{ﬁf sombinations 653 - 1,078 28 21 1,780
Disposals (12,910) (188,836) (615) (295) (60,493) (263,149)
Foreign exchange differences 39,659 154,220 4,007 11,690 40,383 249,959
Other (Note 2) 23,866 158,111 11,632 (207,861) 38,530 24,278
Balance, March 31, 2024 1,267,882 4,028,515 224 457 223,086 983,331 6,727,271

(Note 1) Construction in progress includes expenditures related to property, plant and equipment under construction.

(Note 2) Other includes transfers from construction in progress to each item.

(Note 3) The increase in "Business combinations" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the acquisition of Belua

Beheer B.V. (See Note 6 "Business combinations").

(Unit: Millions of yen)

and sccumiated mpament 24191 and Mq:;i“i Lana [Constucton| g | o

Balance, April 1, 2022 697,576 2,637,044 2,452 798 707,421 4,045,291
Depreciation (Note 4) 36,668 250,737 = - 61,654 349,059
Impairment losses 42 - — - 10 52
Disposals (7,633) (126,420) = - (32,475) (166,528)
Foreign exchange differences 12,684 67,610 55 - 18,274 98,623
Other 8,594 15,881 6 (798) 16,929 40,612
Balance, March 31, 2023 747,931 2,844,852 2,513 - 771,813 4,367,109
Depreciation (Note 4) 37,173 257,987 = - 64,784 359,944
Impairment losses — = — - = =
Disposals (9,560) (171,643) = - (54,010) (235,213)
Foreign exchange differences 22,413 115,240 107 - 33,862 171,622
Other 2,381 8,136 = - 9,692 20,209
Balance, March 31, 2024 800,338 3,054,572 2,620 - 826,141 4,683,671

(Note 4) Depreciation on "Property, plant and equipment" is included in "Cost of revenue" and "Selling, general and

administrative expenses" in the consolidated statement of income.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Machinery

Carrying amount Blildings and and Land (?onstruction Other Total
structures equipment in progress
Balance, April 1, 2022 438,318 920,777 205,371 199,895 148,246 1,912,607
Balance, March 31, 2023 448,713 932,340 205,842 216,734 151,611 1,955,240
Balance, March 31, 2024 467,544 973,943 221,837 223,086 157,190 2,043,600
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(2) Carrying amount of assets pledged as collateral
Carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral are not presented as they are immaterial.

(3) Commitments

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant, and equipment are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, As of March 31,
2023 2024
Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 127,807 173,465

(4) Impairment losses
The impairment losses the Group recognized for each fiscal year are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023
The impairment losses are not presented as they are immaterial.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
The impairment losses are not applicable.

(5) Reversal of impairment losses
The reversal of impairment losses the Group recognized for each fiscal year is as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023
The reversal of impairment losses is not applicable.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
The reversal of impairment losses is not applicable.

63




12. Assets held for sale
For the year ended March 31, 2023

(Transfer of the fuel pump module business)

The fuel pump module business, and the related assets and liabilities held by KYOSAN DENSO MANUFACTURING
KENTUCKY, LLC, which had been classified as "Assets held for sale" and "Liabilities directly associated with assets
held for sale" for the year ended March 31, 2022, were transferred to Aisan Industry Co., Ltd. on September 1, 2022.
The gains on sales for this business transfer are included in "Other income" in the consolidated statement of income
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(The sell of Toyota Industries Corporation shareholding)

On March 29, 2024, the Company sold a part of its Toyota Industries Corporation (hereinafter “Toyota Industries”)
shareholding and entered into a share forward agreement for all the remaining shares. As a result, as of the end of the
current fiscal year, Toyota Industries shares held by the Company has been classified as held for sale.

The breakdown of "Assets held for sale,” "Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale" and "Other
comprehensive income associated with assets held for sale" is as follows.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY 2024 FY2024
As of March 31, 2024 As of March 31, 2024

Liabilities directly associated
with assets held for sale

Other financial assets 417,578 | Deferred tax liabilities 111,343

Other comprehensive income
associated with assets held for

Assets held for sale

sale
Net fair value gain on equity
instruments designated as 258,936
FVTOCI
Total 417,578 | Total 370,279

(The sell of TD MOBILE business)

On July 10, 2023, the Company agreed to transfer TD MOBILE Corporation’'s cell phone sales and agency business
(excluding some sales stores) to a newly established subsidiary of RANET Co., Ltd. As a result, in the second quarter
of the fiscal year, the assets and liabilities held by TD MOBILE Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary of the
Company, were classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale.

As the business transfer was carried out on October 1, 2023, profit related to the business transfer was recognized in
the nine months ended December 31, 2023. This profit is included in “Other income” in the consolidated statement of
income for the year ended March 31, 2024.
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13. Right-of-use assets

(1) The breakdown and movement of acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

and carrying amount of right-of-use assets are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)
Acquisition cost Bl;':ﬁ:g%i:;d Ma;?':lg o Land Other Total
equipment

Balance, April 1, 2022 43,913 5,966 17,937 2,783 70,599
Acquisition 9,451 3,402 495 238 13,586
Business combinations - — — - -
Disposals (8,915) (494) (514) (172) (10,095)
Foreign exchange differences 719 90 358 21 1,188
Other 53 (268) (198) (221) (634)
Balance, March 31, 2023 45,221 8,696 18,078 2,649 74,644
Acquisition 15,482 1,600 394 374 17,850
Business combinations — — — = =
Disposals (14,600) (3,457) (2,598) (1,757) (22,412)
Foreign exchange differences 1,470 292 870 330 2,962
Other 2,840 77 (112) (212) 2,593
Balance, March 31, 2024 50,413 7,208 16,632 1,384 75,637

(Unit: Millions of yen)
pocmuated deprodaionand | Buldrgeand | g™ | g | oter | Tow

equipment

Balance, April 1, 2022 16,807 2,901 3,846 1,651 25,205
Depreciation (Note) 10,531 3,489 985 571 15,576
Impairment losses = = - = =
Disposals (8,455) (614) (498) (395) (9,962)
Foreign exchange differences 315 45 78 13 451
Other (2) (137) (130) 1 (268)
Balance, March 31, 2023 19,196 5,684 4,281 1,841 31,002
Depreciation (Note) 11,211 1,650 920 544 14,325
Impairment losses — = — = =
Disposals (10,009) (3,429) (981) (1,802) (16,221)
Foreign exchange differences 652 157 203 105 1,117
Other (965) 18 17 (3) (933)
Balance, March 31, 2024 20,085 4,080 4,440 685 29,290

(Note) Depreciation of right-of-use assets is included in "Cost of revenue" and "Selling
expenses" in the consolidated statement of income.

, general and administrative

(Unit: Millions of yen)
Carrying amount B";itlrcﬂgfusr;;d Ma‘,m =y Land Other Total
equipment
Balance, April 1, 2022 27,106 3,065 14,091 1,132 45,394
Balance, March 31, 2023 26,025 3,012 13,797 808 43,642
Balance, March 31, 2024 30,328 3,128 12,192 699 46,347

For the lease transactions, see Note 30 "Leases.”

65




(2) Impairment losses

The Group recognized impairment losses for the following assets:

For the year ended March 31, 2023
The impairment losses are not applicable.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

The impairment losses are not applicable.
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14. Intangible assets

(1) The breakdown and movement of acquisition cost, accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses,

and carrying amount of "Intangible assets" are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

ACHTIER Development - Gustamer: Technology-
cquisition cost Software Rl Goodwill ;eslsa:lasd bl ot Other Total
Balance, April 1, 2022 155,009 22,349 25,048 51,757 14,705 39,580 308,448
Acquisition 15,717 - - - - 14,698 30,415
Internally generated 2,904 18,603 - 2 = 1,358 22,865
Business combinations = - = . - e .
Disposals (11,820) = = = = (2,957) | (14,777)
FOreign sichangs 2,036 = 333 306 171 188 | 3,034
Other 15,100 (280) = = = (13,211) 1,609
Balance, March 31, 2023 178,946 40,672 25,381 52,063 14,876 39,656 351,594
Acquisition 15,648 == = = = 12,289 27,937
Internally generated 2477 23,260 - = = 94 25,831
?ﬁj{gﬁﬁs Combinatidns " " 9,895 162 10,039 68| 20,164
Disposals (7,754) (429) (7,377) (14,524) - (2,533) | (32,617)
roIn Shae 3,938 14 887 117 % 421 5473
Other 8,350 979 - . — (10,409) (1,080)
Balance, March 31, 2024 201,605 64,496 28,786 37,818 25,011 39,586 397,302

(Note 1) The increase in "Business combinations" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the acquisition of Belua

Beheer B.V. (See Note 6 "Business combinations").

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Accumulated amortization Disifil t Customer- Technol
and accumulated Software eve oqmen Goodwiill related b ec dno 095;' Other Total
impairment losses costs assets AnnEaiems
Balance, April 1, 2022 102,426 11,410 1,012 17,989 4,113 15,918 152,868
Amortization (Note 2) 24,492 5,095 = 3,641 1,492 3,760 38,480
Impairment losses - - 1,188 - — - 1,188
Disposals (11,730) — = == - (2,479) (14,209)
Foreign exchange 1,242 = = 150 52 91 1,535
differences ! !
Other 3,957 == - — . (2,437) 1,520
Balance, March 31, 2023 120,387 16,505 2,200 21,780 5,657 14,853 181,382
Amortization (Note 2) 25,454 4,477 — 2,870 1,761 4,105 38,667
Impairment losses = — — = = = =
Disposals (7,281) == (2,200) (13,514) . (2,289) (25,284)
Foreign exchange _
diffarences 2,689 12 18 14 236 2,969
Other (995) 449 — — - 353 (193)
Balance, March 31, 2024 140,254 21,443 - 11,154 7,432 17,258 197,541

(Note 2) Amortization of intangible assets is included in "Cost of revenue" and "Selling, general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of income.
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(Unit: Millions of yen)

Déil t Customer- o
Carrying amount Software |“EVEIOPMENY & q0dwill related ecnnalogy- Other Total
costs S— based assets
Balance, April 1, 2022 52,583 10,939 24,036 33,768 10,592 23,662 155,580
Balance, March 31, 2023 58,559 24,167 23,181 30,283 9,219 24,803 170,212
Balance, March 31, 2024 61,351 43,053 28,786 26,664 17,579 22,328 199,761

The research and development expenditures recognized in profit or loss for the years ended March 31, 2023 and
2024 were ¥503,012 million and ¥527,945 million, respectively. These amounts were included in "Cost of revenue"

and "Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of income.

(2) Impairment losses

The Group recognized impairment losses for the following assets:
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Impairment losses on goodwill recognized along with the fair value measurement of TD MOBILE were ¥1,188
million.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
The impairment losses are not applicable.

(3) Material intangible assets

The material intangible assets recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Average remaining
amortization periods
(Years)

Carrying amount
(Millions of yen)

Customer-related assets

30,283 18.2

Technology-based assets

9,219 6.6

Significant intangible assets recognized for the year ended March 31, 2023 were customer-related assets
(carrying amount of ¥23,493 million, remaining amortization period of 22.0 years) and technology-based assets
(carrying amount of ¥3,978 million, remaining amortization period of 7.0 years), which were recognized as a result

of the acquisition of the core electronic component operation from Toyota Motor Corporation.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Carrying amount
(Millions of yen)

Average remaining
amortization periods

(Years)

Customer-related assets

26,664

18.5

Technology-based assets

17,579

12.8

Significant intangible assets recognized for the year ended March 31, 2024 were as follows:
- Customer-related assets (carrying amount of ¥22,425 million, remaining amortization period of 21.0 years) and
technology-based assets (carrying amount of ¥3,410 million, remaining amortization period of 6.0 years), which

were recognized as a result of the acquisition of the core electronic component operation from Toyota Motor

Corporation.

- Customer-related assets (carrying amount of ¥135 million, remaining amortization period of 2.5 years) and

technology-based assets (carrying amount of ¥9,779 million, remaining amortization period of 18.5 years),
which were recognized as a result of the acquisition of Belua Beheer B.V.
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(4) Impairment test for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, and tested for impairment

annually or whenever there is any indication of impairment.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated to each of the cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from excess earning powers in the future from synergies resulting
from the business combination. Allocations to each of the cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
The Company (Note 1) 7,265 7,265
TD MOBILE (Note 2) 5,176 =
DENSO TEN group (Note 3) 1,938 1,938
DENSO FA YAMAGATA 3,464 3,464
Chongging Chaoli Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. 3,093 3,817
Belua Beheer B.V. (Note 4) — 9,898
Other 2,245 2,404
Total 23,181 28,786

(Note 1) Goodwill allocated to the Company was allocated to the related business field.

(Note 2) Goodwill allocated to TD MOBILE was allocated to directly managed stores run by TD MOBILE. The business of
TD MOBILE was transferred for the year ended March 31, 2024 (See Note 12 "Assets held for sale").

(Note 3) Goodwill allocated to the DENSO TEN group was allocated to DENSO TEN and its key subsidiaries.

(Note 4) The Company acquired Belua Beheer B.V. as a consolidated subsidiary for the year ended March 31, 2024
(See Note 6 "Business combinations").

Recoverable amounts for each cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units are calculated using the
maximum value in use based on the five-year business plan prepared based on past experiences and external
evidence. Such business plans are approved by management. Cash flow projections beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady or declining growth rate. They were discounted using the weighted-average cost of
capital 10.00%-10.48% of cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units. While the recoverable
amounts exceeded the carrying amounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, an increase in the discount rate of
0.5% would result in impairment losses.
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15. Income taxes
(1) Income tax expenses
"Income tax expenses" for each fiscal year are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

Current income tax expenses
Current year 105,602 142,545
Prior years (130) (1,179)
Total 105,472 141,366
Deferred income tax expenses
Occurrence and reversal of temporary 3123 (58,887)

differences ’ ’
Recognition of previously unrecognized

deferred tax assets 20 (1.829)
Reversal of deferred tax assets

recognized in the prior year 114 4
Total 3,537 (60,702)
Total of income tax expenses 109,009 80,664
Income taxes recognized in other
comprehensive income (42,704) 413,782

(Note) The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the
aggregate, resulted in an applicable tax rate of 30.07% for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.
The current income tax charges outside of Japan are calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted in the jurisdictions where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable

income.

The reconciliation between the applicable tax rates and the average effective tax rates reflected in the

accompanying consolidated statements of income for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: %)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Applicable statutory tax rate 30.07 30.07
Lower income tax rates applicable to
income in certain foreign subsidiaries (341) (4.91)
Tax credit for R&D expenses (3.38) (5.43)
Dividends Received Deduction (0.69) (1.34)
Retained earnings of foreign
subsidiaries 051 3.12
Share of the loss (profit) of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using 0.19 (1.16)
the equity method
Other 0.57 (1.88)
Actual effective tax rate 23.86 18.49

"Retained earnings of foreign subsidiaries" and "Share of the loss (profit) of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method,” which were included in "Other" for the year ended March 31, 2023, are
presented separately for the year ended March 31, 2024 due to their increased materiality. To reflect these
changes in presentation, the notes for the years ended March 31, 2023 have been reclassified. As a result,
"Retained earnings of foreign subsidiaries” of 0.51% and "Share of the loss (profit) of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method" of 0.19% were separately presented, and "Others" decreased from 1.27%
to 0.57% for the years ended March 31, 2023.
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(2) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in "Deferred tax assets" and "Deferred tax liabilities" for each fiscal year are as follows:
For the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Exchange
Balance, |Recognized Re_:cognlzed . Transfer CIEEERES
beginning in in other _ Bugmeg;s to held on Balance,
7 fit or | comprehensive [combinations| f | translating |end of year|
of year |profit or loss e or sale foreign
operations
Deferred tax assets (Note 1)
Accrued bonuses to employees 21,361 862 — - - 115 22,338
Reserve for warranty 34,154 | (11,587) — - - 118 | 22,685
Retirement benefit liabilities 74,394 755 (7,155) - - 213 | 68,207
Accrued vacations paid 23,149 (51) — = = 62| 23,160
Other 191,314 4,268 970 = = 3,360 [ 199,912
Total deferred tax assets 344,372 (5,7593) (6,185) - = 3,868 | 336,302
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 1)
Investment in equity instruments | 361,865 = (46,461) = = — | 315,404
Depreciation 51,246 2,439 — = = 1,955 | 55,640
Retirement benefit assets 62,528 3,542 (13,113) - - 1 52,958
Other 28,984 (8,197) (733) - - 786 20,840
Total deferred tax liabilities 504,623 (2,216) (60,307) - — 2,742 | 444842
Net (160,251) (3,937) 54,122 = = 1,126 |(108,540)
For the year ended March 31, 2024 (Unit: Millions of yen)
Exchange
Bal R ized Recognized Busi Transfer [differences
b SANCE,, |REShgRIZe in other ut;a‘:met_ss to held on Balance,
€ginning in comprehensive combINations| - ¢, sale translating |end of year
of year |profit or loss h (Note 2) .
income (Note 3) foreign
operations
Deferred tax assets (Note 1)
Accrued bonuses to employees 22,338 300 — - - 196 22,834
Reserve for warranty 22,685 53,518 — - — 144 76,347
Retirement benefit liabilities 68,207 (4,597) 3,691 = = 312 67,613
Accrued vacations paid 23,160 1,207 = . o 96 24,463
Other 199,912 20416 (3,662) = = 6,331 | 222,997
Total deferred tax assets 336,302 70,844 29 - = 7,079 | 414,254
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 1)
Investment in equity instruments | 315,404 — 376,825 — | (111,343) — | 580,886
Depreciation 55,640 4,442 = = - 2,893 | 62975
Retirement benefit assets 52,958 (3,370) 13,879 = — 6 63,473
Other 20,840 9,070 148 2,537 — 1,020 | 33,615
Total deferred tax liabilities 444 842 10,142 390,852 2,537 | (111,343) 3,919 | 740,949
Net (108,540) 60,702 (390,823) (2,537) | 111,343 3,160 ((326,695)

(Note 1) The recoverability of deferred tax assets was assessed based on sufficient amounts of taxable temporary
differences and future taxable income, and feasibility of tax planning.
The Group has applied the exception to the requirements in |AS 12 that an entity does not recognize or disclose
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the OECD Pillar Two model rules for income

taxes.

(Note 2) The increase in "Business combinations" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the acquisition of Belua
Beheer B.V. (See Note 6 "Business combinations").
(Note 3) The decrease in "Transfer to held for sale" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the decision to sell the
shares of Toyota Industries Corporation (See Note 12 "Assets held for sale").
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(Changes in accounting policies)

The Group has applied IAS 12 Income Taxes (amended in May 2021) starting from the current fiscal year. Details
of the amendment are described in Note 2 "Basis of preparation (5) Changes in accounting policies."

This amendment has been applied retrospectively, but the amount of impact on the consolidated financial
statements after retrospective application in the previous fiscal year is not material. The breakdown by main cause
as well as increases/decreases of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for the previous fiscal year are
based on the amounts after retrospective application.

"Deferred tax assets" and "Deferred tax liabilities" reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as of

each fiscal year-end are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets 42,967 56,057
Deferred tax liabilities 151,507 382,752
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) (108,540) (326,695)

The deductible temporary differences in which deferred tax assets were not recognized as of each fiscal year-end

are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
As of March 31, 2023

FY2024
As of March 31, 2024

Deductible temporary differences

97,065

89,272

The unused tax losses for which deferred tax assets were not recognized as of each fiscal year-end are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Within 15t year 4,797 5,449
2" year 7,802 5,331
3" year 4,154 7,419
4™ year 1,981 2,265
5t year and thereafter 45,324 45,785
Total 64,058 66,249

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024, deferred tax liabilities were not recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except for undistributed profits which are determined to be
distributed. This was because the Company was able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it was certain that the temporary differences would not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in which deferred tax liabilities were not
recognized as of March 31, 2023 and 2024 were ¥1,541,627 million and ¥1,740,000 million, respectively.
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(3) Uncertain tax position
The Company and its U.S.-based subsidiaries applied for prior confirmation regarding transfer pricing, and an
agreement was reached between Japanese and U.S. tax authorities. During the current fiscal year, which is the
final business year of the period covered by the prior confirmation, it became more likely that, from the next fiscal
year onward, compensatory adjustments will be made to reduce the Company's income and increase the income
of its U.S.-based subsidiaries as a result of mutual negotiations between Japanese and U.S. tax authorities.
Accordingly, the Company and its U.S.-based subsidiaries each recognized assets and liabilities related to

uncertain tax positions.

As a result, in the current fiscal year, income tax receivables included in other current assets under current assets
increased by ¥7,990 million, income tax payables increased by ¥6,431 million, and income tax expenses
decreased by ¥1,679 million. The amount of such impact is calculated based on the expected profit and loss of the

U.S.-based subsidiaries for the current fiscal year.
Due to the fact that these estimates include uncertainties, if unpredictable changes to assumptions, etc., lead to

changes in estimates, this may result in a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for the next

fiscal year and beyond.
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16. Bonds and borrowings
The breakdown of "Bonds and borrowings" at each fiscal year-end is as follows:

The Company is subject to financial covenants with respect to a portion of its borrowings from financial institutions and
has complied with such covenants for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024. In addition, the Company monitors
each compliance status to maintain the level required by such financial covenants.

FY2023 FY2024 A _—
As of March 31, | As of March 31, | AV€rage Interes .
rate (%) Maturity date
2023 2024 (Note 1)

(Millions of yen) [ (Millions of yen)
With collateral
Short-term borrowings - - - —
Current portion of long-term borrowings - - - —
Long-term borrowings = = = =
Without collateral
Short-term borrowings 155,509 178,516 3.23 -
Current portion of bonds (Note 2) 50,000 20,000 = —
Current portion of long-term borrowings 98,000 134,000 0.12 =
Bonds (Note 2) 186,765 175,705 = -
Long-term borrowings 399,000 342,500 0.20 | From 2025 to 2031
Total 889,274 850,721 - -

(Note 1) Average interest rate indicates the weighted-average interest rates applicable to borrowings at each fiscal year-
end.

(Note 2) Bonds at each fiscal year end consisted of the following:

FY2023 FY2024 nt ¢
Name of Date of IAs of March 31,As of March 31, Hiefas Redemption
Issuer rate Collateral .
bond Issuance 2023 2024 (%) period
(Millions of yen){(Millions of yen ¢
The 13th
The unsecured | Hebtember8, 20,000 20,000 | 0.14 None | Soptember 18,
Company Bonds
The 15th
June 8, June 18,
unsecured 2017 40,000 40,000 0.25 None 2027
bonds
The 17th .
April 26, 20,000 March 19,
unsecured 2018 20,000 (20,000) 0.18 None 2025
bonds
The 18th .
unsecured | April 26, 40,000 40,000 | 032 None | March 17,
2018 2028
bonds
I::elitr}:e d November 50,000 _ 0.00 None November 20,
P 20, 2020 (50,000) 2023
Due 2026 U.S.
dollar-
denominated September September 16,
straight bonds | 16, 2021 86,765 75705 124 None | 5026
(sustainability
bonds)
Total _ _ 236,765 195,705 _ _ _
(50,000) (20,000)

(Note) The amounts in parentheses under "FY2023 and FY2024 (Millions of yen)" indicate current portion of bonds.
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17. Trade and other payables
The breakdown of "Trade and other payables" at each fiscal year-end are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Notes and accounts payable (Note 1) 815,403 813,707
Other (Note 2) 403,914 418,756
Total 1,219,317 1,232,463

(Note 1) "Trade and other payables" are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

(Note 2) Other includes mainly accrued expenses and notes/accounts payable for equipment.

18. Provisions
"Provisions" were included in current liabilities and non-current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The breakdown and movements in provisions for each fiscal year are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Reserve for Provision for loss on
warranty antitrust issues Other Total
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Balance, April 1, 2022 121,280 14,889 9,619 145,788
Provisions made 14,504 816 8,869 24,189
Provisions used (40,361) (4,972) (4,175) (49,508)
Provisions reversed (14,012) = (1,082) (15,094)
Foreign exchange differences 1,355 1,010 427 2,792
Balance, March 31, 2023 82,766 11,743 13,658 108,167
Provisions made 215,780 1,984 13,174 230,938
Provisions used (34,988) (1,591) (5,941) (42,520)
Provisions reversed (8,042) — (4,585) (12,627)
Foreign exchange differences 10,455 1,483 1,059 12,997
Balance, March 31, 2024 265,971 13,619 17,365 296,955

(Note 1) A portion of the reserve for warranty is expected to be reimbursed by mutual agreement with the Group's
suppliers. The estimated amounts of reimbursements were ¥963 million and ¥3,027 million as of March 31,
2023 and 2024, respectively. The amounts are included in "Trade and other receivables" in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(Note 2) Please refer to Note 33 "Contingencies" for provision for loss on antitrust issues.
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19. Post-employment benefits

The Group has funded or unfunded defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans as employee retirement
benefit plans. The benefits for defined benefit plans are provided based on conditions, such as points that employees
acquired in compensation for each year of service, years of service, and others. The pension amounts that are
actuarially calculated using certain ratios of relevant wages and salaries are accumulated as funds to prepare for the
payment of future benefits. In addition, the Group may pay additional retirement grants for employees which do not
meet the definition of defined benefit plans under IFRS.

The funded defined benefit plans are managed by a fund that is legally segregated from the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements. The board of the pension fund and the trustees of the plan are required by law to act in the
best interests of the plan participants and are responsible for managing the plan assets in accordance with the

designated investment strategy.

(1) Defined benefit plans

The balance and changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as

follows:

1) Changes in the defined benefit obligation (Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

Balance, beginning of year 936,550 875,242
Service cost 37,579 33,981
Interest cost on obligation 9.877 12,981
Plan amendments (2,412) -
Actuarial gains and losses (Demographic) (8,970) 8,060
Actuarial gains and losses (Financial) (52,582) (34,646)
Liquidation = (38,846)
Business transfer (Note 2) = (1,944)
Benefits paid (49,534) (49,941)
Foreign exchange differences 4,734 7,963
Balance, end of year 875,242 812,850

(Note 1) Actuarial gains and losses include adjustments based on actual results.
(Note 2) The decrease in "Business transfer" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the transfer of TD MOBILE

business (See Note 12 "Assets held for sale").

2) Changes in the plan assets

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Balance, beginning of year 782,713 755,678
Interest income on plan assets 8,404 10,739
Income from plan assets other than interest (30,112) 30,424
Employer contributions 20,051 25,229
Liquidation = (37,422)
Business transfer (Note 3) = (1,168)
Benefits paid (28,468) (27,734)
Foreign exchange differences 3,090 5,675
Balance, end of year 755,678 761,421

(Note 3) The decrease in "Business transfer" for the year ended March 31, 2024 was due to the transfer of TD MOBILE

business (See Note 12 "Assets held for sale").
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3) Reconciliation of balances of defined benefit obligations and plan assets

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024

As of March 31, 2023 | As of March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation, end of year 875,242 812,850
Plan assets, end of year 755,678 761,421
Effect of the asset ceiling 51,490 80,835
Net amount of defined benefit obligation and plan assets 171,054 132,264
Retirement benefit liabilities 249,266 238,201
Retirement benefit assets 78,212 105,937
Net amount of liabilities and assets recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position ’ 171,054 132,264

Investment policy

The Group's investment policy for the plan assets of its defined benefit pension plans is to procure an
adequate return to provide future payments of pension benefits over the long term by optimizing risk tolerance
and formulating a well-diversified portfolio including investments such as equity instruments, debt instruments,

and insurance contracts.

Considering the funded status of the pension plans and surrounding economic environment for investments,
the Group's investment strategy may be revised as needed.

Moreover, the Group continuously monitors and pays extra attention to the diversification of risks relevant to
strategies and investment managers for the purpose of risk control and, thereby, pursues efficient risk

management.

Major components of plan assets

The fair values of plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 are as follows:

As of March 31, 2023

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Plan assets that have a
Category quoted market price in an
active market

Plan assets that do not have
a quoted market price in an
active market

Total

Equity instruments

Japanese equity securities 50,038 o= 50,038
Global equity securities 246 1,610 1,856
Commingled funds—
Japanege equity securities B 47,035 47,035
Commingled funds—
Global gquity securities - 22,917 22917
Total—Equity instruments 50,284 71,622 121,906
Debt instruments
Japanese debt securities 18,957 — 18,957
Global debt securities 61,994 — 61,994
Commingled funds—
Japanege debt securities a 64,775 64,775
Commingled funds—
Global debt securities a 40,940 40,940
Other 267 8,095 8,362
Total—Debt instruments 81,218 113,810 195,028
Insurance contracts (Note 1) — 220,980 220,980
Other (Note 2) 44,784 172,980 217,764
Total 176,286 579,392 755,678

(Note 1) Insurance contracts include investments in life insurance company general accounts, which are guaranteed for
the principal amount and interest rate by life insurance companies.

(Note 2) Other includes mainly cash and cash equivalents.
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As of March 31, 2024 (Unit: Millions of yen)

Plan assets that have a | Plan assets that do not have
Category quoted market price in an | a quoted market price in an Total
active market active market
Equity instruments
Japanese equity securities 98,685 = 98,685
Global equity securities 196 2,058 2,254
Commingled funds—
Japanege equity securities B 43,393 43,393
Commlngleq funds—” _ 23,748 23.748
Global equity securities
Total—Equity instruments 98,881 69,199 168,080
Debt instruments
Japanese debt securities 16,184 — 16,184
Global debt securities 50,034 — 50,034
Commingled funds— - — 56,650 56,650
Japanese debt securities
Commingled funds—
Global debt securities a 24,260 24,260
Other 177 9,912 10,089
Total—Debt instruments 66,395 90,822 157,217
Insurance contracts (Note 1) = 222,828 222,828
Other (Note 2) 19,108 194,188 213,296
Total 184,384 577,037 761,421

(Note 1) Insurance contracts include investments in life insurance company general accounts, which are guaranteed for
the principal amount and interest rate by life insurance companies.
(Note 2) Other includes mainly cash and cash equivalents.

Changes in the effect of the asset ceiling are as follows:
Any economic benefits are not available because future contributions are not reduced or refunded.
Consequently, an unrecognized surplus has arisen in some pension plans of the Group.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

Balance, the effect of the asset ceiling at the beginning of year - 51,490

Interest income - 591
Remeasurement

Changes in the effect of the asset ceiling 51,490 28,754

Balance, the effect of the asset ceiling at the end of year 51,490 80,835

The major items of actuarial assumptions as of each fiscal year-end are as follows: (Unit: %)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Discount rate 1.29 1.83
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Changes in the key assumptions may affect the measurement of defined benefit obligations as follows. In
addition, this analysis shows the sensitivity to the key assumptions without considering all information of
projected cash flow.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Increase (decrease) of defined benefit obligations
as of March 31, 2024

Discount rate: Decreased by 0.5% 52,816

Discount rate: Increased by 0.5% (47,265)

The Group expects ¥19,546 million of the contribution to be paid from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025.

The weighted-average durations of the defined benefit obligations for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024
were 17 years and 16 years, respectively.

(2) Defined contribution plans

The amounts recognized as expenses related to the defined contribution plans for the years ended March 31,
2023 and 2024 were ¥11,490 million and ¥15,192 million, respectively.
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20. Equity and other equity items
(1) Capital stock and Capital surplus
Under the Companies Act, at least 50% of the proceeds of certain issues of common shares shall be credited to
"Capital stock." The remainder of the proceeds shall be credited to "Capital surplus." The Companies Act permits,
upon approval at the general meeting of shareholders, the transfer of amounts from "Capital surplus" to "Capital
stock."
The numbers of authorized shares for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were 1,500 million shares and

6,000 million shares, respectively.

The number of fully paid issued shares and the increase/decrease in each fiscal year-end are as follows:

Number of shares

Capital stock

Capital surplus

(Shares) (Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
FY2023 As of March 31, 2023 787,944,951 187,457 273,664
Increase (Decrease) 2,363,834,853 = (183)
FY2024 As of March 31, 2024 3,151,779,804 187,457 273,481

(Note 1) The shares issued by the Company are non-par value ordinary shares that have no restriction on any content of
rights.

(Note 2) On October 1, 2023, the Company effected a 4-for-1 split of common stock. The number of authorized shares
and the number of fully paid issued shares increased by 4,500 million shares and 2,363,834,853 shares,

respectively.

(2) Retained earnings
The Companies Act provides that an amount equal to 10% of dividends shall be appropriated as "Capital surplus”
or as a legal reserve until the aggregate amount of the "Capital surplus" and the legal reserve equals 25% of
"Capital stock." The legal reserve may be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit or be transferred to "Retained

earnings" upon approval at the general meeting of shareholders.

(3) Treasury stock
The Companies Act allows Japanese companies to purchase and hold treasury stock. Japanese companies are
allowed to decide the number, amount, and other aspects of the treasury stock to be acquired, not exceeding the
amount available for distribution, upon resolution at the shareholders' meeting. The Companies Act also allows
Japanese companies to purchase treasury stock through market transactions or tender offer by resolution of the
board of directors, as long as it is allowed under the articles of incorporation, subject to limitations imposed by the

Companies Act.

The increase/decrease of treasury stock as of each fiscal year-end is as follows:

Number of shares Amount
(Shares) (Millions of yen)
FY2023 As of March 31, 2023 39,122,931 252,270
Increase 201,891,897 199,870
FY2024 As of March 31, 2024 241,014,828 452,140

(Note) "Increase" includes an increase of 117,368,791 shares due to a 4-for-1 split of common stock on October 1,

2023, and an increase of 84,523,106 shares due fo the acquisition of treasury stock by resolution of the Board of

Directors, and etc.
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(4) Other components of equity
1) Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI
Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI is the accumulated gains and losses

related to financial instruments measured at the fair value through other comprehensive income.

2) Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans are the amount affected by the difference between the
actuarial assumption, actual result and by the change of the actuarial assumption and the effect of the asset
ceiling. The amount is recognized through other comprehensive income as incurred, then immediately

transferred from other components of equity to retained earnings.

3) Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations are the foreign exchange differences which are
recognized when ftranslating the results and financial position of a foreign operation of the Group from a

functional currency into the presentation currency of the Group.
4) Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are the accumulated amounts of the effective portion of gains and losses, arising from

changes in the fair value of hedging instruments for cash flow hedges.
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21. Dividends

Total annual dividends for each fiscal year are as follows:

. Class of | Total dividends | Dividends per :
Resolution shares |(Millions of yen)| share (Yen) Record date Effective date
Board of Directors' meeting Ordinary
held on April 28, 2022 shares 64,886 85 | March 31, 2022 May 25, 2022
Board of Directors' meeting Ordinary 67 891 90 September 30, November 25,
held on October 28, 2022 shares ’ 2022 2022
Board of Directors' meeting Ordinary
held on April 27, 2023 Shates 71,141 95 | March 31, 2023 May 25, 2023
Board of Directors' meeting Ordinary 74 888 100 September 30, November 27,
held on October 31, 2023 shares ! 2023 2023

(Note) On October 1, 2023, the Company effected a 4-for-1 split of common stock. "Dividends per share" indicates the

amount prior to the stock split.

Dividends for which the record date is in the current fiscal year, yet the effective date is in the following fiscal year, are

as follows:
o Dividends
. Class of | Source of | Total dividends .
Resolution shares | dividends | (Millions of yen) pe(t%sél:}a)lre Record date |Effective date
Board of Directors' meeting Ordinary | Retained
held on April 26, 2024 shares earnings Bre2l A0 | Madhadl, 2020 | May:23..2004
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22. Revenue
(1) Disaggregation of revenue
The Group serves automobile manufacturers around the world and supplies a wide range of automotive
technology, system and products to mainly OEMs. In the aftermarket and non-automotive business, the Group
mainly supplies automotive service parts and accessories to end-users. Revenue generated from these
businesses is recorded in accordance with contracts with customers and is presented as "Revenue."

Disaggregated revenue by customer is as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Toyota Group 3,158,814
Other Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales 2,522 167
Total Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales 5,680,981
Aftermarket and Non-Automotive Business 720,339
Total 6,401,320

(Note 1) The amounts are after deduction of inter-group transactions.
(Note 2) The "Total Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales" includes income from subleasing right-of-use assets
of ¥14,224 million, under IFRS 16.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unit: Millions of yen)

Toyota Group 3,667,452
Other Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales 2,821,623
Total Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales 6,489,075
Aftermarket and Non-Automotive Business 655,658
Total 7,144,733

(Note 1) The amounts are after deduction of inter-group transactions.
(Note 2) The "Total Original Equipment Manufacturing Sales" includes income from subleasing right-of-use assets of
¥14,662 million, under IFRS 16.

Disaggregated revenue by product is as follows:

In accordance with the organizational change on January 1, 2023, effective from the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024, certain products previously classified as "Non-Automotive Business" are reclassified as "Thermal Systems."
The disaggregated revenue by product for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023 is presented in line with the

category after this rearrangement.
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For the year ended March 31, 2023

Before rearrangement:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Thermal Systems 1,584,971
Powertrain Systems 1,489,329
Mobility Electronics 1,615,572
Electrification Systems 1,042,180
Advanced Devices 361,652
Others 130,529
Automotive Total 6,224,233
Non-Automotive Business Total 177,087
Total 6,401,320

(Note 1) The amounts are after deduction of inter-group transactions.

(Note 2) The "Automotive Total" includes income from subleasing right-of-use assets of ¥14,224 million, under IFRS 16.

After rearrangement:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Thermal Systems 1,585,559
Powertrain Systems 1,489,329
Mobility Electronics 1,615,572
Electrification Systems 1,042,180
Advanced Devices 361,652
Others 130,529
Automotive Total 6,224,821
Non-Automotive Business Total 176,499
Total 6,401,320

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Thermal Systems 1,730,859
Powertrain Systems 1,518,566
Mobility Electronics 1,941,723
Electrification Systems 1,241,622
Advanced Devices 423,934
Others 143,199
Automotive Total 6,999,903
Non-Automotive Business Total 144,830
Total 7,144,733

(Note 1) The amounts are after deduction of inter-group transactions.

(Note 2) The "Automotive Total" includes income from subleasing right-of-use assets of ¥14,622 million, under IFRS 16.

For the breakdown of revenue by geographical segment and revenue to the Toyota Group, see Note 5 "Segment

information.”
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(2) Contract balances

The breakdown of contract balances of the Group is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

Receivables from contracts with customers

Trade and other receivables 1,023,767 1,160,421 1,123,568
Total 1,023,767 1,160,421 1,123,568
Contract assets

Other current assets 976 4,323 3,957

Other non-current assets 3,302 4,161 4,491
Total 4,278 8,484 8,448

The balance and changes in contract assets are both immaterial.

Of the revenue recognized for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, the amounts included in the

balance of contract liabilities at the beginning of the periods, or the amounts of revenue recognized from

performance obligations that have been satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods, are immaterial.

(3) Refund liabilities

The Group expects a portion of the product sales transactions to be refunded to customers due to estimated

discounts. Refund liabilities of ¥9,267 million and ¥16,771 million are included in "Other current liabilities" for the

fiscal years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

(4) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

As the Group does not have significant contracts with an expected term in excess of one year, the Group has
applied the practical expedient and omitted the information on remaining performance obligations. In addition,
considerations arising from contracts with customers do not include significant amounts that are not included in the

transaction price.
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23. Other income
The breakdown of "Other income" for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Rental income-property, plant and equipment 2,580 2,667
Gain on sales-property, plant and equipment 8,678 6,168
Gain on business transfer 3,668 6,723
Other (Note) 22,435 33,942
Total 37,361 49,500

(Note) "Other" for the year ended March 31, 2024 included a profit of ¥2,858 million as a result of the remeasurement of
the equity interest of Belua Beheer B.V. previously held at the time of acquisition of control by the Company at the
fair value on the acquisition date (See Note 6 "Business combinations").

24. Selling, general and administrative expenses and other expenses
The breakdown of "Selling, general and administrative expenses" for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Freight expenses 48,004 45,818
Employee benefit expenses 219,335 221,826
Provision for warranty reserve 1,154 205,108
Depreciation 35,091 35,346
Welfare expenses 34,769 38,364
Other 152,101 168,702
Total 490,454 715,164
The breakdown of "Other expenses" for each fiscal year is as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Loss on sales or disposal-property, plant and equipment 9,582 15,462
Impairment losses 1,240 =
Loss on litigation 3,800 1,277
Other (Note) 17,330 26,951
Total 31,952 43,690

(Note) "Other" for the year ended March 31, 2024 included losses on antitrust issues, which were settlement amounts,
etc., with regard to the alleged violation of antitrust law or competition law in connection with certain past
transactions regarding specific auto parts in the amount of ¥4,951 million (See Note 33 "Contingencies").
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25. Income and expenses pertaining to financial instruments
The breakdown of "Finance income" for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

Interest income

Financial assets measured at amortized cost (i.e., deposits and other) 14,825 30,772

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (i.e.,

: ier 179 —

interest rate derivatives)
Dividend income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income (Note) 35,198 45,677
Other 1,281 2,262
Total 51,483 78,711

(Note) Dividend income from the financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, which
was recognized in each fiscal year included the dividend income from the financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income which were derecognized in each fiscal year (See Note 10 "Other financial

assets").

The breakdown of "Finance costs" for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Interest expenses
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost (i.e., bonds, borrowings,
and other) 9,346 12,835
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (i.e., _ 1.444
interest rate derivatives) !
Interest on defined benefit liabilities, net 1,473 2,242
Loss on net monetary position 1,923 4416
Other 924 1,309
Total 13,666 22,246
26. Earnings per share
(1) Basis of calculating basic earnings per share
1) Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent company (Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Profit attributable to owners of the parent company 314,633 312,791

2) Average number of shares—basic

(Unit: Thousands of shares)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Average number of shares—basic 3,025,270 2,979,855

(Note) On October 1, 2023, the Company effected a 4-for-1 split of common stock. Average number of shares—basic is
calculated on the assumption that the stock split was implemented at the beginning of the year ended March 31,
2023.

(2) Basis of determination of profit used to determine diluted earnings per share
Earnings per share-diluted is not presented as there are no shares with dilutive effect.
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27. Other comprehensive income

The breakdown of "Other comprehensive (loss) income," including that

each fiscal year is as follows:

attributable to non-controlling interests, for

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
2022/4-2023/3

FY2024
2023/4-2024/3

Other comprehensive (loss) income
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Arising during the year (138,650) 1,359,879
Income taxes 36,013 (403,446)
Total (102,637) 956,433
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans
Arising during the year (20,050) 27,665
Income taxes 5,958 (10,188)
Total (14,092) 17477
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for
using the equity method
Arising during the year 7 55
Total 7 55
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Arising during the year 115,175 222,391
Reclassification to profit or loss (619) (2,219)
Total 114,556 220,172
Cash flow hedges
Arising during the year (3,263) (394)
Reclassification to profit or loss 826 884
Before income taxes (2,437) 490
Income taxes 733 (148)
Total (1,704) 342
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for
using the equity method
Arising during the year 4,758 7,588
Total 4,758 7,588
Total other comprehensive income 888 1,202,067

The breakdown of other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests (net of tax) for each fiscal year

is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (326) 1,793
Remeasurements of net defined benefit pension plans 634 (852)
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 6,126 9,780
Total 6,434 10,721
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28. Non-financial transactions that are material
Details of non-financial transactions that are material
Assets and liabilities related to lease transactions are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
The amounts of assets and liabilities related to lease transactions 28,725 30,989
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29. Financial instruments
(1) Capital management
To achieve sustainable growth, the Group aims to ensure financial health while continuing stable and lasting
returns to shareholders by managing its resources through activities such as facility investment in business,
research and development, and mergers and acquisitions. Generally, the operating cash flows cover such funding
by maintaining and strengthening the Group's profitability and cash-generating ability, with additional interest-
bearing debt, such as debts and borrowings, if necessary. In addition, the Group secures funds to maintain stable
financial health in the long term. The Group is not exposed to capital restrictions by external parties as of March
31, 2024.

(2) Description and extent of financial risks
In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to financial risks, such as credit risks, market risks,

and liquidity risks, and performs risk management activities in accordance with certain policies to avoid or reduce
these risks. The policy of funding, including derivative transactions at the Company, is approved by the Board of
Directors at the beginning of each fiscal year and governs internal regulations, which stipulate the internal controls
for derivative transactions and relevant risk management.

The Group policy limits derivative transactions for the purpose of mitigating risks arising from transactions on
actual demand. Therefore, the Group does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

1) Credit risk
Receivables, such as notes and account receivables, acquired from the operating activities of the Group are
exposed to customer credit risk. The Group manages its credit risks from receivables based on internal
guidelines, which include monitoring of payment terms and balances of each customer to identify the default risk

of customers at an early stage. As of March 31, 2024, receivables from the Toyota Group accounted for 37% of
the total receivables.

The Group utilizes financial instruments in accordance with internal credit management regulations to minimize
its risk on short-term investment trusts on debt securities, bonds, and debentures. In line with the internal asset
management regulations, the Group transacts with highly rated financial institutions, securities, and issuing
entities, therefore credit risk is deemed immaterial.

The counterparties to derivative transactions are limited to highly rated financial institutions to minimize credit
risks arising from counterparties.

The carrying amount of financial assets, net of accumulated impairment loss, presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the maximum exposure of the Group's financial assets to credit risks
without taking account of any collateral obtained.

The Group determined whether credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition based on
fluctuations in the risk of default, taking into consideration matters such as the financial situation of the customer
and past due information. When contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is, in
principle, deemed to have significantly increased. When evaluating credit risk, the Group takes into
consideration reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, and in the
event that it is possible to refute the determination based on this information, it may be assumed that there is no

significant increase in credit risk.
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In addition, the Group, in principle, deems a default to have occurred when contractual payments are more than
90 days past due and when credit impairment has occurred. The Group evaluates whether or not there is any
objective evidence to demonstrate that credit impairment has occurred at the end of each reporting period.

Evidence of credit impairment includes a default or delinquency of the borrower, granting the borrower a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications of bankruptcy of the issuer or obligor, and
the disappearance of active markets. If future collection cannot be reasonably expected, the financial instrument

is written off.

Changes in allowance for doubtful accounts
The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful accounts taking into consideration the recoverability of

trade receivables, etc., according to the credit status of counterparties. Expected credit losses are measured by
multiplying the gross carrying amount by the expected credit loss rate. The expected credit loss rate is
calculated based on reasonable and supportable information available without undue cost or effort, such as
historical default rates, past due status of receivables, the financial position of the borrower, or the economic

prospects of the industry to which the borrower belongs.

In addition, for financial instruments for which there is a significant increase in credit risk and credit-impaired
financial assets, expected credit losses are calculated as the difference between the recoverable amount
individually calculated and the gross carrying amount. The individually calculated recoverable amount factors in
forecasts for future economic conditions of the counterparty in addition to its financial situation.

There have been no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assumptions for the assessment

of allowance for doubtful accounts during the current reporting period.

Increase and decrease of allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:

Trade receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit losses
Non-credit-impaired Credit-impaired financial Total
financial assets assets
Balance, April 1, 2022 1,602 2,567 4,169
Increase 1,689 = 1,689
Decrease—used (87) (970) (1,057)
Decrease—reversed (364) (137) (501)
;i?f;'!lac\:?asllf:;sast;ctng to credit-impaired (1,046) 1,046 _
Foreign exchange differences 56 190 246
Balance, March 31, 2023 1,850 2,696 4,546
Increase 1,551 525 2,076
Decrease—used (321) (806) (1,127)
Decrease—reversed (627) (608) (1,235)
Eﬁ;;ac\:?:llf:;sast;ctng to credit-impaired (860) 860 _
Foreign exchange differences 43 278 321
Balance, March 31, 2024 1,636 2,945 4,581

(Note) Allowance for doubtful accounts is not recorded for contract assets or lease receivables.
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Receivables except for trade receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit

12-month expected _ Ios_s.es _ . Total
credit losses Credit-impaired financial
assets

Balance, April 1, 2022 112 1,681 1,793
Increase 56 - 56
Decrease—used = = =
Decrease—reversed (4) = (4)
Reclassification to credit-impaired _ _ _
financial assets

Foreign exchange differences 1 14 15
Balance, March 31, 2023 165 1,695 1,860
Increase 12 - 12
Decrease—used = = =
Decrease—reversed (61) = (61)
Reclassification to credit-impaired _ _ _
financial assets

Foreign exchange differences 6 122 128
Balance, March 31, 2024 122 1,817 1,939

Changes in the gross carrying amount of financial instruments that contributed to the changes in the allowance
for doubtful accounts are as follows:

Trade receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit losses

Non-credit-impaired Credit-impaired financial Total
financial assets assets
Balance, April 1, 2022 931,678 2,950 934,628
New financial assets and
derecognized financial assets during 89,925 (983) 88,942
the period N
Eeclags'.lficatlon to credit-impaired (1,524) 1,524 _
inancial assets
Foreign exchange differences 37,487 219 37,706
Balance, March 31, 2023 1,057,566 3,710 1,061,276
New financial assets and
derecognized financial assets during (103,766) (2,329) (106,095)
the period
Reclassification to credit-impaired
financial assets (3.222) 3,222 B
Foreign exchange differences 66,740 410 67,150
Balance, March 31, 2024 1,017,318 5,013 1,022,331
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Receivables except for trade receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit
12-month expected losses Total
credit losses Credit-impaired financial
assets

Balance, April 1, 2022 970 1,681 2,651
New financial assets and
derecognized financial assets during 130 = 130
the period
Reclassification to credit-impaired . . _
financial assets
Foreign exchange differences = 14 14
Balance, March 31, 2023 1,100 1,695 2,795
New financial assets and
derecognized financial assets during 157 = 157
the period
Reclassification to credit-impaired _ _ _
financial assets
Foreign exchange differences — 122 122
Balance, March 31, 2024 1,257 1,817 3,074

Risk profile

The breakdown of credit risk profiles by external credit ratings, etc., are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Trade receivables, contract assets, or lease receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit losses
Non-credit-impaired Credit-impaired financial Total
financial assets assets
Within due date 1,165,028 = 1,165,028
Past due within 90 days 12,730 - 12,730
Past due within 90 days to 1 year 4.811 1,855 6,666
Past due over 1 year 693 1,855 2,548
Total 1,183,262 3,710 1,186,972
Receivables except above
(Unit: Millions of yen)
Lifetime expected credit
12-m0|_1th expected _ ios_ses _ . Total
credit losses Credit-impaired financial
assets
Within due date 113,647 - 113,647
Past due within 30 days = = =
Past due within 30 days to 90 days — = =
Past due within 90 days to 1 year - - -
Past due over 1 year == 1,695 1,695
Total 113,647 1,695 115,342

(Note) Financial instruments for which the Group does not recognize credit losses due to low credit risk such as deposits
at major financial instruments etc., among financial assets measured at amortized cost, are not included.
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Bonds

(Unit: Millions of yen)

12 months expected
credit losses

Rating over AA

366

(Note) Rated by MOODY'S JAPAN, S&P GLOBAL RATINGS JAPAN and Rating and Investment Information, Inc.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Trade receivables, contract assets, or lease receivables

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime expected credit losses
Non-credit-impaired Credit-impaired financial Total
financial assets assets
Within due date 1,118,669 = 1,118,669
Past due within 90 days 20,723 - 20,723
Past due within 90 days to 1 year 2,877 3,276 6,153
Past due over 1 year 2,155 1,737 3,892
Total 1,144,424 5,013 1,149,437

Receivables except above

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Lifetime nlaxpected credit
. osses
12_m°n“|10§);220t9d credit Credit-impaired financial Total

assets
Within due date 167,096 = 167,096
Past due within 30 days — = =
Past due within 30 days to 90 days - - -
Past due within 90 days to 1 year = = =
Past due over 1 year - 1,817 1,817
Total 167,096 1,817 168,913

(Note) Financial instruments for which the Group does not recognize credit losses due to low credit risk such as deposits
at major financial instruments etc., among financial assets measured at amortized cost, are not included.

Bonds
(Unit: Millions of yen)
12 months expected
credit losses
Rating over AA 300

(Note) Rated by MOODY'S JAPAN, S&P GLOBAL RATINGS JAPAN and Rating and Investment Information, Inc.
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2) Market risk

i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates globally and is exposed to foreign currency risks related to transactions in currencies
other than the local currencies in which the Group operates. Such foreign exchange risk is hedged principally
by forward foreign currency contracts related to foreign currency trade receivables and payables. Currency
swaps are used for borrowings in foreign currency as derivative transactions. Risk management is performed
by the Company's accounting division based on the internal guidelines which prescribe the authority and limits

for each transaction. The subsidiaries manage their derivative transactions based on similar guidelines.

The details of currency derivatives are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Contractual Contractual or Contractual Contractual or
or notional notional amounts |Fair value| or notional notional amounts |Fair value
amounts due after one year amounts due after one year
Forward exchange
contracts
Buying 3,907 — (52) 4,229 — (97)
Selling 66,566 — (912) 76,971 — (894)
Currency option
Buying (put) 3,849 — (27) 3,124 — 4
Selling (call) 3,849 — 27 3,124 — 6
Currency swaps
Buying 68,085 — (3,422) 71,286 — 2,343
Selling 15,114 10,752 184 12,966 9,688 236
Total 161,370 10,752 | (4,202) 171,700 9,688 1,598

(Note) There is no derivative transaction above to which hedge accounting is applied.

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis

Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis shows the effect on profit or loss and equity of 1% changes in the

Japanese yen to the Company's balances of foreign currency as of the end of each fiscal year. This analysis is

calculated by adjusting fluctuation by 1% on foreign exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Also,

the analysis is based on the assumption that other factors, such as balance and interest rate, are constant.
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
As of March 31, 2023

FY2024

As of March 31, 2024

Net profit or loss

351

519

Equity

351

519
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ii) Interest-rate risks
Since the Group borrows funds at both fixed interest rates and variable interest rates, the Group's borrowings
and bonds are exposed to interest rate fluctuation risk. The Group's interest-bearing borrowings mainly consist
of bonds and borrowings with fixed interest rates, and the borrowings at the variable interest rate are

essentially equivalent to fixed interest rate borrowings by using corresponding interest-rate swap agreements.

In accordance with the Group's internal policy for derivative transactions which prescribes the authorities and
limited amounts, the Company's accounting department conducts its financial management activities. The

subsidiaries manage their derivative transactions based on similar guidelines.

The details of Interest derivatives are as follows:

Interest derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Contractual Contractual or Contractual Contractual or
or notional | notional amounts |Fair value| or notional | notional amounts (Fair value
amounts due after one year amounts due after one year
Interest rate swap
Floating rate receipt, 25,377 20,772 838 23,270 21,287 375
fixed rate payment
Floating rate receipt, — — - — - —
floating rate payment
Cross currency swap
Floating rate receipt, - — - — - -
fixed rate payment
Fixed rate receipt, 43,463 2,558 | (1,202) 46,455 710 (5,283)
fixed rate payment
Total 68,840 23,330 (364) 69,725 21,997 | (4,908)

(Note) For interest derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied, see (3) Hedge accounting.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the effect on the Group's profit or loss and equity arising from financial instruments
affected by interest rate fluctuations, assuming the interest rate increases by 1% at the end of each fiscal year.
This analysis is calculated by multiplying the net balance of floating-rate financial instruments held by the
Group as of the fiscal year-end by 1% with neither future changes in the balances nor effects of foreign

exchange fluctuations taken into account. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
As of March 31, 2023

FY2024
As of March 31, 2024

Net profit or loss

4,152

4,407

Equity

4,152

4,407
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3) Liquidity risk

The Group raises funds through borrowings and bonds; however, such liabilities are exposed to the liquidity risk
that the Group would not be able to repay liabilities on the due date due to the deterioration of the financing
environment. The Group manages its liquidity risk by holding adequate volumes of liquid assets to cover the
amounts of one month's consoclidated revenue of the Group, along with adequate financial planning developed
and revised by the Group's accounting department based on reports from each business unit.

The Group's remaining contractual maturities for financial liabilities as of each fiscal year-end are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 Due in one egzratfl:?crn?;lf Due after five Total
As of March 31, 2023 year or less five years years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Bonds and borrowings 303,509 556,765 29,000 889,274

Trade and other payables 885,274 — e 885,274

Other financial liabilities (Note) 43,945 19,839 10,439 74,223
Derivative financial liabilities

Derivatives 5,408 257 402 6,067

(Note) For lease liabilities which are included

in other financial liabilities, see Note 30 "Leases."

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Due after one

FY2024 Due in one year through Due after five Total
As of March 31, 2024 year or less five years years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Bonds and borrowings 332,516 480,705 37,500 850,721
Trade and other payables 888,033 — = 888,033
Other financial liabilities (Note) 35,618 19,303 9,525 64,446
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivatives 6,912 143 149 7,204

(Note) For lease liabilities which are included in other financial liabilities, see Note 30 "Leases."

4) Price risks of equity instruments

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity instruments. These investments are not held for
trading purposes. The Group periodically reviews the fair value of these instruments as well as the financial
condition and relationships with investees.

Assuming that the share price rose or fell by 1% at each fiscal year-end, the increase or decrease in total equity
would have amounted to approximately ¥10,579 million and ¥18,738 million for the years ended March 31, 2023
and 2024, respectively. As most marketable securities held by the Group are classified as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI, a 1% rise or fall in share price would have an immaterial impact on profit or loss.

The significant unobservable input used in measuring the fair value of non-marketable shares and other equity
securities is the non-liquid discount rate. Substantial increase or decrease in such inputs causes material
increase or decrease to the fair value.
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(3) Hedge accounting

Interest rate currency swap transaction

The Group has borrowings in foreign currencies with floating interest rates, and is exposed to foreign exchange
risks and interest rate risks. In order to hedge the risks when borrowing in foreign currencies at floating interest
rates, cash flow payments are, in principle, fixed in yen or at contracted interest rates by concluding interest rate
currency swaps at the time of borrowing.

The Group uses interest rate currency swaps as hedging instruments in order to hedge the foreign exchange risk
and the interest rate risk on borrowings with floating interest rates in foreign currencies. The Group determines the
economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument based on the currency, amount, and
timing of occurrence of the relevant cash flows. For transactions currently subject to hedge accounting, the
important conditions for the hedged item and the hedging instrument are the same, and the hedge ratio is 1:1.
The importance of the currency basis spread is deemed to be insignificant. Hedge ineffectiveness occurs as the
result of fluctuations in the credit risk of the counterparty of the hedged items and hedging instruments. However,
since the Group transacts only with reputable financial institutions, the risk of occurrence of hedge ineffectiveness
is deemed to be extremely small.

No hedge ineffectiveness has been recognized in profit or loss in the previous year or the current year.

Details of hedging instruments that are designated as cash flow hedges are as follows:

FY2023
As of March 31, 2023

Carrying | Nominal Average | Average Within 1 105 Over 5
arnlount a_mount Fate rics year years years
(Millions of|(Millions of (%) (i;ren) (Millions of|(Millions of|(Millions of|
yen) yen) yen) yen) yen)
Interest rate currency swap transaction
Fixed rate receipt, fixed rate payment 95,291 55,065 0.07 110.13 = 55,065 =

FY2024
As of March 31, 2024

e | [ veoe [ v | W] T ] 0o
(Millions of{ (Millions of Eﬂ}? (Pf;"-; (Millions of|(Millions of|(Millions of
yen) yen) § y yen) yen) yen)
Interest rate currency swap transaction
Fixed rate receipt, fixed rate payment 14,720 55,065 0.07 110.13 - 55,065 —

Assets or liabilities related to the aforementioned derivatives are included in "Other financial assets" or "Other
financial liabilities," respectively, in the consolidated statement of financial position. In addition, there are no
forecasted transactions where hedge accounting was used in the previous and current years, but which are no

longer expected to occur.

Hedged items designated as cash flow hedges are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024

Cash flow hedge reserve for continuing hedge (4,483) (4,141)
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The impact of hedge accounting on the consolidated statement of income is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Hedging gains or losses of the reporting period that were
recognized in other comprehensive income (3,263) (394)
The amount reclassified from the cash flow hedge 826 884
reserve into profit or loss (Note)
Total (2,437) 490

(Note) The amount reclassified in profit or loss is included in "Foreign exchange losses" or "Finance costs" in the

consolidated statement of income. See Note 27 "Other comprehensive income" for the reconciliation of each

component of equity and an analysis of other comprehensive income.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments is categorized within the following three levels.

Level 1: Fair value measured via market prices in active markets.
Level 2: Fair value measured via observable prices, either directly or indirectly, other than those categorized within

Level 1.

Level 3: Fair value measured via inputs not based on observable market data.

Transfers between fair value hierarchy levels are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of each quarter.

There were no transfers among Levels for 12 months of the year ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.

1) Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amortized cost is shown as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 Carrying Fair value
As of March 31, 2023 amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Debt securities 365 367 = = 367
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowing (Note) 497,000 o= = 494 885 494,885
Bonds (Note) 236,765 229,215 - - 229,215
(Note) The amounts to be paid or redeemed within a year are included.
(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2024 Carrying Fair value
As of March 31, 2024 amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Debt securities 295 300 = = 300
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowing (Note) 476,500 o= = 473,491 473,491
Bonds (Note) 195,705 187,903 - - 187,903

(Note) The amounts to be paid or redeemed within a year are included.

The fair values of short-term financial assets and short-term financial liabilities, which are measured at
amortized cost, approximate the carrying amounts, and are not disclosed above.

The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated based on the present value, which is obtained by
discounting the sum of the principal and interest by the interest rate assumed in a case where the same loan
would be newly issued.
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2) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

B ok J ;2323?.’1‘ 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative assets — 6,779 = 6,779
Shares

Listed shares 1,512,846 - — 1,512,846
Unlisted shares — = 162,356 162,356
Other equity securities — - 3,396 3,396
Total 1,512,846 6,779 165,752 1,685,377

Derivative liabilities - 6,056 = 6,056
Total = 6,056 = 6,056

(Unit: Millions of yen)

As of J;ggzsﬂ‘ 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative assets — 18,598 — 18,598
Shares

Listed shares 2,679,492 - — 2,679,492
Unlisted shares - = 330,373 330,373
Other equity securities = = 3,712 3,712
Total 2,679,492 18,598 334,085 3,032,175

Derivative liabilities — 7,187 - 7,187
Total — 7,187 = 7,187

Derivatives used by the Group primarily consist of foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps, and

currency swaps.

The fair values of foreign exchange forward contracts are determined based on quoted market prices for similar
contracts with similar terms. With respect to interest rate swaps and currency swaps, the fair values are
determined by reference to prices offered by financial institutions.

The fair values of unlisted shares and other equity securities are measured by using the most appropriate

method in accordance with specific circumstances. Those fair values are measured by using the discounted

cash flow method or the adjusted market value method with adjustments to the market value using the PBR,

price book-value ratio, if necessary.

The significant unobservable input used in measuring the fair value of unlisted shares and other equity
securities is the non-liquid discount of 30%.
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The increase or decrease of financial instruments that are classified in Level 3 are as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

Balance, beginning of year 150,603 165,752
Total recognized gains and losses

Losses recognized in profit or loss (Note 1) (1,043) (548)

(Losses) gains recognized in other comprehensive income (Note 2) (3,099) 63,617
Purchases 19,296 105,827
Sales or Disposal (5) (563)
Balance, end of year 165,752 334,085

(Note 1) Losses recognized in profit or loss are related to financial assets measured at fair value through net profit or
loss as of the fiscal year-end. These gains and losses are included in "Finance income" and "Finance costs" in
the consolidated statement of income.

(Note 2) Gains and losses recognized in other comprehensive income are related to financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income as of the fiscal year-end. These gains and losses are included in
"Net fair value (loss) gain on equity instruments designated as FVTOCI" in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(5) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
A part of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities were offset in accordance with the requirements for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities and the net amounts were presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the Group has financial derivative transactions under master netting
arrangements or similar arrangements. These arrangements provide the Group, in the event of default by the
counterparty, the right to offset receivables and payables with the same counterparty. The offsetting information of
financial assets and financial liabilities with the same counterparty as of each fiscal year-end are as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024

As of March 31, 2023|As of March 31, 2024
Total financial assets 21,718 18,598
Offsetting amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance
with the requirements {1.640) a
FEI‘IB‘.I?IC]EH assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial 10,078 18,598
position (Note 1)
The amount to be offset under master netting arrangement or similar (1,827) (2.228)
arrangements
Cash collateral received — =
Net (Note 2) 8,251 16,370

(Note 1) Derivative assets recognized in "Financial assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial position"
for the years ended March 31, 2023 were ¥6,779 million.

(Note 2) Derivative assets recognized in "Net" amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial position for
the years ended March 31, 2023 were ¥4,952 million.
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(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024

As of March 31, 2023|As of March 31, 2024
Total financial liabilities 20,223 7,187
Offsetting amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance
with the requirements (11,640) a
;;r::zc‘:;I liabilities presented in the statement of financial position 8,583 7.187
The amount to be offset under master netting arrangement or similar (1.827) (2.228)
arrangements
Cash collateral paid = =
Net (Note 4) 6,756 4,959

(Note 3) Derivative assets recognized in "Financial assets presented in the consolidated statement of financial position"

for the years ended March 31, 2023 were ¥6,056 million.

(Note 4) Derivative assets recognized in "Net" amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial position for

the years ended March 31, 2023 were ¥4,229million.
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30. Leases
(1) As Lessee
The Group leases assets such as buildings and structures, machinery and equipment, and land. In this
transaction, the amounts of gains or losses arising from variable lease payments, lease agreements including
residual value guarantees, and sale and leaseback transactions are immaterial. In addition, there are no
restrictions or covenants imposed by the leases.

1) Lease liabilities
The breakdown of lease liabilities at each fiscal year-end is as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Due within one year 24,089 18,794
Due after one year through five years 19,839 19,303
After five years 10,439 9,525
Total 54,367 47,622

The balance of the lease liabilities is included in "Other financial liabilities" in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk that the Group would not be able to repay lease
liabilities on the due date due to the deterioration of the business environment or other similar situation. The
Group manages its liquidity risk by holding adequate volumes of liquid assets to cover the amounts of one
month's consolidated revenue of the Group, along with adequate financial planning developed and revised by

the Group's accounting department based on reports from each business unit.

2) Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expense on lease liabilities for each fiscal year is as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

405 768

3) Total cash outflow for leases
Total cash outflow for leases for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3

38,681 48,474
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4) The expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets for each fiscal year is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
2022/4-2023/3

FY2024
2023/4-2024/3

The expense relating to short-term leases

7,924

9,684

The expense relating to leases of low-value assets

252

68

For short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, the lease payments associated with those leases are

recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

5) Future cash outflows that are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities due to leases that are not yet

commenced but committed

The amount of future cash outflows that are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities due to leases

that are not yet commenced but committed is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023
2022/4-2023/3

FY2024

2023/4-2024/3

3,171

(2) As lessor

1) Finance lease receivables

The breakdown of finance lease receivables at each fiscal year-end is as follows:

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 FY2024
As of March 31, 2023 As of March 31, 2024
Due within one year 13,513 12,473
Due after one year through five years 4,554 4,948
After five years — =
Total 18,067 17,421

The balance of the lease receivable is included in "Trade and other receivables" and "Other financial assets" in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group leases, as lessor, mainly tools and molds and
receipt periods are mainly two years, therefore, the amount of lease receivables longer than two years is

immaterial. Also, there is neither unearned finance income nor discounted unguaranteed residual value.

For finance lease, the amounts of selling profit or loss, finance income on the net investment in the lease, and
income relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the net investment in the lease,

are immaterial.

The amount of income from subleasing right-of-use assets is the same as income from subleasing right-of-use
assets under IFRS 16 in the Note 22 "Revenue."

2) Lease payments from operating leases
Lease payments from operating leases are immaterial.

For the details of right-of-use assets, see Note 13 "Right-of-use assets."
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31. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unit: Millions of yen)

FY2023 = Bon-cash Chang'zs _ FY2023
As of April 1,(Cash flows| Foreign ... 1 o INew lease | CHYSNeSS As of March
2022 exchange changes | contracts combi- Cthar 31,2023
differences nations
Short-term
borrowings 174,212 | (36,870) 18,167 = = = = 155,509
'60"9'*'?"“ 516,027 | (12,124) 16 - - - (6,919) [ 497,000
orrowings
Lease liabilities 55,926 | (30,100) 448 - 28,725 - (630) 54,367
Bonds 301,196 | (70,000) 5,569 = = = = 236,765
Derivatives
(Note) 9,141 8,608 46 | (11,728) = = - 6,067
Total 1,056,502 | (140,486) 24,244 | (11,728) 28,725 - (7,549) 949,708
For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2024 - Nupsash Cha"geBS | FY2024
As of April 1,|Cash flows| Foreign .. e |New lease | PUSINess As of March
2023 Bxchange changes | contracts comby: Other 31,2024
differences nations
Short-term
borrowings 155,509 5,149 17,858 = = = == 178,516
'60”9‘“?“ 497,000 | (21,093) - - ~ - 593 | 476,500
orrowings
Lease liabilities 54,367 | (37,954) 751 = 30,989 - (531) 47,622
Bonds 236,765 | (50,000) 8,940 = = = = 195,705
Derivatives
(Note) 6,067 (2,302) 478 2,944 = - - 7,187
Total 949,708 | (106,200) 28,027 2,944 30,989 - 62 905,530

(Note) Derivatives are included in "Other financial liabilities" in the consolidated statement of financial position and

"Other" in "Cash flows from financing activities" in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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32. Related parties
(1) Related-party transactions

For the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Category Name Main transactions Transaction amounts

Associated company which has Sale of automotive components 3,158,814
R - Toyota Group -

significant influence over the Group Purchase of automotive components 57,489

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Category Name Main transactions Transaction amounts

Associated company which has Sale of automotive components 3,667,452
L : Toyota Group -

significant influence over the Group Purchase of automotive components 63,566

Outstanding balance and allowance for doubtful accounts of the above transactions as of each fiscal year-end are

as follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024

As of March 31, 2023 | As of March 31, 2024

Trade accounts receivable 368,769 356,093
Electronically recorded monetary claims 67,333 61,871
Accounts receivable - others 961 598
Allowance for doubtful accounts - 92
Accounts payable 8,421 12,756
Accrued expenses 2,584 1,560

(2) Remuneration of key managing officers
For the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Breakdown of remuneration

Total remuneration

Basic remuneration

Bonuses

Share-based payment

Key managing officers 453

219

132

102

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Unit: Millions of yen)

Breakdown of remuneration

Total remuneration

Basic remuneration

Bonuses

Share-based payment

483

Key managing officers

237

120

126
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33. Contingencies
The details of contingent liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Concerning the Antitrust Law
(1) Investigations by Countries and Competition Authorities
The Company is responding to the authorities' investigations in certain jurisdictions.

(2) Civil Lawsuits
The Company (along with its certain subsidiaries) is among the defendants named in the lawsuit filed by a certain
customer in a U.K. court, wherein damages are claimed on suspicion of violation of antitrust law or competition law
in connection with certain past transactions regarding specific auto parts. The case will be proceeded in
accordance with the rule of the civil procedure in the U.K., and the Company could commence settlement
discussions with the plaintiffs at any time in the proceedings and reach a settlement.

(3) Individual Settlement Negotiations
The Company have been engaged in negotiations with the Company's major customers (certain automobile
manufacturers), individually concerning the alleged violation of antitrust law or competition law in connection with

certain past transactions regarding specific auto parts.

In relation to certain of these matters, the Company has estimated its potential payable amounts and has reserved
such amounts in the "Other expenses" category (see Note 18 "Provisions" and Note 24 "Selling, general and
administrative expenses, and other expenses").

Please note that pursuant to IAS 37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets," the Company has
not disclosed the overall content of these disputes because the disclosure of such information could be expected
to prejudice the position of the Company.

34. Subsidiaries, associates, and others
Please refer to the Appendix for a list of the major consolidated subsidiaries.

There are no subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests, associates, or joint ventures at the end of fiscal
years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024.

The effects on capital surplus of changes in the ownership interest in subsidiaries without a loss of control are as

follows:
(Unit: Millions of yen)
FY2023 FY2024
2022/4-2023/3 2023/4-2024/3
Decrease in capital surplus (157) (227)

Gains (losses) associated with a loss of control of subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 were not
material.
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35. Subsequent events
The Group has evaluated subsequent events through June 26, 2024.

The sell of a part of the shareholdings

The Company resolved to sell a part of its investment securities holdings of Renesas Electronics Corporation on May
20, 2024 and completed it on May 21, 2024.

The gains on the sell will be treated as other comprehensive income in the consolidated accounts, and there will be no
impact on the consolidated statement of income.

Details of the transaction for this sell are as follows.

Shares to be sold Ordinary shares of Renesas Electronics Corporation
Number of shares to be sold 78,127,800 shares (4.4% of the issued shares excluding treasury shares)
Other comprehensive income ¥146,704 million
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Appendix

List of subsidiaries

The Company's subsidiaries as of March 31, 2024 are as follows.

Segment Company name Voting rights (%)
Japan KYOSAN DENKI CO., LTD. 63.0
HAMANAKODENSO CO., LTD. 76.7
DENSO ELECTRONICS CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO WIPER SYSTEMS, INC. 100.0
DENSO AIR SYSTEMS CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO SOLUTION CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO WAVE INC. 75.2
DENSO TECHNO CO., LTD. 100.0
DENSO TRIM CO., LTD. 80.0
DENSO KYUSHU CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO HOKKAIDO CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO IWATE CORPORATION 100.0
DENSO TEN LIMITED 51.0
44 Other companies =
North America DENSO INTERNATIONAL AMERICA, INC. 100.0
DENSO PRODUCTS AND SERVICES AMERICAS, INC. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING MICHIGAN, INC. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING NORTH CAROLINA, INC. 100.0
(82.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING TENNESSEE, INC. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING ATHENS TENNESSEE, INC. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING ARKANSAS, INC. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO TEN AMERICA LIMITED 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING CANADA, INC. 100.0
DENSO SALES CANADA, INC. 100.0
DENSO MEXICO S.A. DE C.V. 95.0
(95.0)
12 Other companies =
Europe DENSO INTERNATIONAL EUROPE B.V. 100.0
DENSO EUROPE B.V. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO BARCELONA S.A. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING ITALIA S.p.A. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO THERMAL SYSTEMS S.p.A. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING HUNGARY, LTD. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO THERMAL SYSTEMS POLSKA SP.ZO.0. 100.0
(100.0)
DENSO MANUFACTURING CZECH s.r.o. 100.0
(100.0)

28 Other companies
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Segment

Company name

Voting rights (%)

Asia DENSO INTERNATIONAL ASIA PTE., LTD. 100.0
DENSO INTERNATIONAL ASIA CO., LTD. 100.0
(100.0)

DENSO (THAILAND) CO., LTD. 51.7
(51.7)

SIAM DENSO MANUFACTURING CO., LTD. 90.0
(90.0)

DENSO SALES (THAILAND) CO., LTD. 100.0
(100.0)

SIAM KYOSAN DENSO CO., LTD. 100.0
(100.0)

DENSO TEN (THAILAND) Limited 99.0
(99.0)

PT. DENSO INDONESIA 68.3
(68.3)

PT. DENSO MANUFACTURING INDONESIA 100.0
(100.0)

PT. DENSO SALES INDONESIA 100.0
(100.0)

DENSO (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. 72.7
(72.7)

DENSO MANUFACTURING VIETNAM CO., LTD. 95.0
(95.0)

DENSO PHILIPPINES CORPORATION 100.0
(100.0)

DENSO TEN PHILIPPINES CORPORATION 100.0
(100.0)

DENSO HARYANA PVT,, LTD. 100.0
DENSO (CHINA) INVESTMENT CO., LTD. 100.0

TIANJIN DENSO ENGINE ELECTRICAL PRODUCTS CO., LTD. 95.0
(95.0)

TIANJIN DENSO ELECTRONICS CO., LTD. 93.5
(93.9)

GUANGZHOU DENSO CO., LTD. 60.0
(60.0)

TIANJIN FAWER DENSO AIR-CONDITIONER CO., LTD. 60.0
(60.0)

DENSO (GUANGZHOU NANSHA) CO., LTD. 100.0
(72.7)

DENSO (CHANGZHOU) FUEL INJECTION SYSTEM CO., LTD. 100.0
(30.8)

DENSO MANUFACTURING (HANGZHOU) CO., LTD. (110006(;
DENSO KOREA CORPORATION 100.0

48 Other companies =
Others DENSO DO BRASIL LTDA. 94.8

4 Other companies

(35.4)

(Note 1) The percentages in parentheses under "Voting rights (%)" indicate indirect ownership out of the total ownership
noted above.
(Note 2) The Group has reported "Japan,” "North America," "Europe," and "Asia" as its reportable segments. "Others" is
an operating segment that is not included in the reportable segments, such as business activities of
subsidiaries in South America.

(Note 3) () in the "voting rights" column indicates "Indirect ownership rate."
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of DENSO CORPORATION:
<Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements>
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DENSO CORPORATION and its subsidiaries
(the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of March 31, 2024, and
the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2024, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Estimating the reserve for warranty

Key Audit Matter Description

As described in Notes 2(4), 3(14) and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the reserve for
warranty amounted to 265,971 million yen in the consolidated statement of financial position as of March
31, 2024.

The reserve for warranty is recognized based on the estimated amount of warranty expenses,

considering the timing of outflows of resources embodying economic benefits based on past experiences
of the after-sales service expenses incurred.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



The warranty expenses include repair expenses for repair requests, which are primarily from end users,
as well as repair expenses for target vehicles, that are based on defect handling (including recalls)
determined by the automobile manufacturers and other customers.

The reserve for warranty related to the defect handling is calculated based on a reasonably expected
amount that would be paid by the Group in the event that automobile manufacturers or other customers
handled the repairs for products manufactured by the Group in the past.

The amount is calculated by multiplying the following:

A.) the number of target vehicles

B.) the repair expenses per unit

C.) the defect handling incidence rate

D.) the expected burden ratio with customers

All of these factors involve significant assumptions, which require management's judgment. Specifically,
certain factors such as "B.) the repair expenses per unit' and "D.) the expected burden ratio with
customers" involve a high degree of uncertainties because they include an estimate of the person-hours
required for repairs, which depends on the cause of product defects as well as the results of negotiations
with customers. Uncertainty in "A.) the number of target vehicles" might increase depending on criteria
such as vehicle type and region. In addition, the uncertainty in accounting estimates might increase if
occurrences of product defects continue to change. Therefore, we have identified the estimate of the
warranty reserve related to defect handling as a key audit matter.

How the Key Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to test the completeness and valuation of individual warranty reserves related to
defect handling including recalls, which comprise a large portion of the overall warranty reserve, included
the following, among others:

(1) We tested the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls over the accounting
department's timely consultation with the quality control department in order to obtain all information
necessary for estimating the warranty reserve.

(2) We inspected the list of recall notifications announced by the Ministry of Land, Infrastructure,
Transport and Tourism, the Board of Directors meeting minutes, the written request for approval,
and so forth to test the completeness of the warranty reserve.

(3) We discussed with the responsible manager in the quality control department the outline of defect
handling, the causes of the product defects and other information for the new cases and discussed
whether there were any changes in the situation that need to be reflected in the current best
estimate for the existing cases.

(4) We reconciled "A.) the number of target vehicles" with the available external data. In addition,
depending on the situation, we evaluated the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by
management to assess the accuracy and completeness of the underlying source data.

(5) We evaluated the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by management for "C.) the
defect handling incidence rate" by comparing the rates used for the assumptions to the actual rates
in other cases for the new cases and to their latest rates for the existing cases.

(6) We evaluated the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by management for "B.) the
repair expenses per unit' and "D.) the expected burden ratio with customers" by examining the
cause of product defects, other actual cases in the past and available external data for the new
cases, and by examining the latest average repair expenses per unit and the latest result of
negotiation of the burden ratio for the existing cases.

(7) We retrospectively compared the estimates which management had recorded in the past with the
results of "B.) the repair expenses per unit" and "D.) the expected burden ratio with customers,” in
order to test the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by management.



2. Estimating provision for loss on antitrust issues
Key Audit Matter Description

As described in Notes 2(4), 3(14), 18 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements, the provision for
loss on antitrust issues amounted to 13,619 million yen in the consolidated statement of financial position
as of March 31, 2024.

Provision for loss on antitrust issues is recognized at an estimated amount of potential future losses to
prepare for payments of litigation settlements, etc., which DENSO CORPORATION has accepted with
regard to allegations of antitrust law infractions for past transactions related to specific automotive parts.

Litigation settlements mainly include A.) surcharges that are ordered to be paid as a result of
investigations by national governments and competition authorities, B.) litigation settlements to be paid
as a result of settlement negotiations with the plaintiffs in civil cases, and C.) litigation settlements to be
paid as a result of individual settlement negotiations with automobile manufacturers.

The Group has established an internal system to prevent violations of the Antitrust Law, and publicly
announced a safety declaration regarding the Antitrust Law in March 2012. As such, the Group believes
that the risk of antitrust violations has been reduced. However, the Group estimates the amount of
litigation settlements that are expected to occur in the future, and reviews the provisions amount that has
already been recorded, in a timely manner, based on the status of investigations by the national
governments and competition authorities related to transactions before March 2012, the progress of
settlement negotiations, the settlement of past settlement cases, and consultation with the attorneys in
charge.

The uncertainty surrounding the intentions of the authorities and other parties could make it difficult to
estimate the amounts of surcharges and litigation settlements to be incurred. As such, we have identified
the estimate of the provision for loss on antitrust issues as a key audit matter.

How the Key Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to test the completeness and valuation of provision for loss on antitrust issues
included the following, among others:

(1) We tested the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls over the accounting
department's timely consultation with legal department in order to obtain all information necessary
for estimating of the provision for loss on antitrust issues.

(2) We discussed with the head of the legal department regarding the status of legal matters globally.
Discussions included the status of correspondence with the authorities of each country in which the
Group operates, the progress of civil cases and the status of negotiations with automobile
manufacturers in order to determine the need for recognizing the provision for loss on antitrust
issues.

(3) We evaluated the appropriateness of the estimation process for the provision for loss on antitrust
issues. This included discussions with the head of the legal department. We evaluated the
reasonableness of significant assumptions used by management by examining the status of the
investigations by the national governments and competition authorities, the progress of settlement
negotiations, the resolution status of past settlement cases and other information.

(4) We sent a confirmation letter to the attorneys in charge to support the information obtained from the
accounting department and the legal department.

(5) We evaluated whether the provision was consistent with the progress of the settlement negotiations
and completely recorded by testing the occurrences of professional fees for the attorneys in charge.



(6) We performed the following procedures for the settled cases in order to evaluate the
reasonableness of amounts estimated by management:

» We inspected the contracts, agreements, and other legal documentation that provided evidence of
the settlement and compared them with the recorded amounts of the provision in the past.

+ We inspected the payment proofs of cases in which payment of settlements had been completed,
and retrospectively compared them with the recorded amounts of the provision in the past.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. Audit & Supervisory Board members and the
Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing the Directors' execution of duties relating to
the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Financial Report 2024, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and the Audit &
Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing
the Directors' execution of duties relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over
the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial statements are
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, as well as the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory
Board, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

<Fee-Related Information>
Fees for audit and other services for the year ended March 31, 2024, which were charged by us and our

network firms to DENSO CORPORATION and its subsidiaries were 1,432 million yen and 671 million
yen, respectively.



Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.
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June 26, 2024



